

3rd Generation Partnership Project

REPORT Version 6

TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting

Cape Town, SA 6th to 9th February 2001

TSG_SA WG1 Chairman:

Alan Cox

Secretary:

Michael Clayton

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	OPI	OPENING OF THE MEETING4		
2	ADOPTION OF AGENDA			
	2.1	CALL FOR IPR	4	
3	RE	PORT AND EMAIL APPROVAL FROM LAST MEETING	4	
	3.1	APPROVAL OF REPORT OF LAST MEETING	4	
	3.2	EMAIL APPROVAL		
4	REI	PORTS FROM OTHER GROUPS	4	
	4.1 SA #10		Δ	
		ISONS FROM OTHER GROUPS		
	5.1	SA		
	5.1.			
	5.1.	.2 SA5	5	
	5.1.	· -		
	5.1.			
	5.2 <i>5.</i> 2.	CN	_	
	5.2. 5.2.			
	5.2. 5.2.			
	5.2.			
	5.3	T		
	5.3.			
	5.3.			
	5.4 5.5	RANGERAN.		
	5.6	GSM ASSOCIATION		
6		_EASE 1999 AND EARLIER		
	6.1	CAMEL	12	
	6.2	NETWORK SELECTION AND GPRS		
7	wo	RK ITEMS (SA1 RESPONSIBILITY)	.15	
	7.1	PROVISIONING OF IP-BASED MULTIMEDIA SERVICES.	. 15	
	7.2	BEARER MODIFICATION WITHOUT PRE-NOTIFICATION.		
	7.3	VHE ENHANCEMENTS		
	7.4	OSA ENHANCEMENTS.		
	7.5	CAMEL PHASE 4		
	7.6 7.7	FACSIMILE TECHNICAL ENHANCEMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS (TEI)		
	7.8	SERVICE PROVIDER NAME		
	7.9	GPRS (22.060) NEW WI		
	7.10	ODB FOR PACKET SERVICES (NEW WI)		
	7.11	CPHS (New WI)	. 27	
8	WC	ORK ITEMS (OTHER GROUPS)	. 28	
	8.1	LOCATION SERVICES ENHANCEMENTS	. 29	
	8.2	MULTIMEDIA MESSAGING.		
	8.3	GLOBAL TEXT TELEPHONY		
	8.4	EMERGENCY CALL ENHANCEMENTS.		
	8.5 8.6	CS MULTIMEDIA SERVICES		
	8.7	SUPPORT OF PUSH SERVICES		
	0.7	3UPPORT OF PUSH 3FRVICES	. :3:4	
_				
9	AN'	Y OTHER BUSINESS	. 35	

TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting Cape Town, SA 6th to 9th February 2001

9.2	Presence detection	35
9.1		
10	ADMINISTRATION	36
10.1	1 ELECTION OF SA1 CHAIRMAN	36
11	APPROVAL OF OUTPUTS AND LIAISONS	36
12	FUTURE MEETINGS	40
13	CLOSURE OF MEETING	40
ANNE	X A – TABLE OF DOCUMENTS	41
ANNE	X B – PARTICIPANTS LIST	48
ANNE	X C - DOCUMENT INDEX	51

DRAFT MEETING REPORT

1 Opening of the Meeting

The TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting was held in Cape Town, SA from the 6th to 9th February 2001. It was chaired by Mr Alan Cox (Vodafone) and the secretary was Mr Michael Clayton from the MCC. The host was Vodacom.

Barry Vlok, from Vodacom, welcomed the delegates to Cape Town, South Africa. He wished the delegates a pleasant stay and a fruitful meeting.

2 Adoption of Agenda

S1-010002 Draft Agenda for SA1 meeting #11	MCC
--	-----

The agenda was approved without comment.

2.1 Call for IPR

The secretary asked the meeting if there was any IPR that needed to be declared. There was none.

3 Report and Email Approval from last meeting

3.1 Approval of report of last meeting

S1-010001 Report of TSG_SA_WG1#10 Meeting MCC

The report was approved without comment.

3.2 Email Approval

No email approval occurred between SA1#10 and SA1#11.

4 Reports from other groups

4.1 SA #10

<u>\$1-010003</u>	Summary and Report from SA #10	MCC
<u>\$1-010063</u>	3GPP TSG SA Workshop on UE in idle mode	Nokia

The report from SA #10 in <u>S1-010003</u> was noted as was the invitation to the 3GPP TSG SA Workshop on UE in idle mode in document <u>S1-010063</u>.

5 Liaisons from other groups

<u>\$1-010062</u>	Application on external devices	Chair GSM CF & EICTA CCIG
<u>\$1-010008</u>	Convergence of QoS approaches in 3GPP and TIPHON	SA #10
<u>\$1-010059</u>	Convergence of QoS approaches in 3GPP and TIPHON	TIPHON
<u>\$1-010060</u>	End to end QoS in IP networks	TIPHON
<u>S1-010159</u>	Reply to TIPHON on QoS	France Telecom

Document <u>S1-010062</u> contained a liaison statement from the Chair GSM CF & EICTA CCIG on the testing of 3G terminals. Whilst this is a serious issue this is not something that SA1 needs to be actively involved in at this time unless the requirements are in doubt. The document was noted.

Document <u>S1-010008</u> contained a liaison statement from TIPHON via SA #10 on QoS relating to Voice over IP. This was presented at the last meeting where it was noted that TIPHON and SA1 has diverged which will make it difficult to harmonize the QoS between 3GPP and TIPHON. The details were provided also in documents <u>S1-010059</u> and <u>S1-010060</u>

The group endorsed the principle of convergence and harmonization between the different approaches, and a reply was provided in <u>S1-010159</u>. It was approved.

5.1 SA

5.1.1 SA3

<u>S1-010042</u>	Modification of pre-configuration information (Copy SA1)	S3
<u>\$1-010043</u>	Proposal not to use the IMSI as the identity of an IM subscriber (Copy SA1)	S3
<u>\$1-010230</u>	Proposal not to use the IMSI as the identity of an IM subscriber (Copy SA1)	SA2

Document <u>\$1-010042</u> contained a liaison statement on modification of pre-configuration information which was copied to \$A1. It was noted.

Document <u>\$1-010043</u> contained a liaison statement on a proposal not to use the IMSI as the identity of an IM subscriber. Whilst it is indicated in the liaison statement that the IMSI is not the best item to use for identification, it does beg the question of what should be used to identify the subscriber. It was noted that the requirements are for secure authentication to the network, but how this is done is not our concern.

It was noted.

Document <u>\$1-010230</u> contained the reply from \$A2 to \$A3 copied to \$A1. It too was noted.

5.1.2 SA5

S1-010065	Questions concerning impact on charging of Release 4	SA5
	architecture	

Document <u>S1-010065</u> contained a liaison statement concerning impact on charging of Release 4 architecture. It was noted as it is a discussion between SA5 and SA2 based on the output from our meeting in Orlando.

5.1.3 SA2

S1-010038 eMLPP for PS Domain	SA2
S1-010101 Removal of GPRS Network Operation Mode III	SA2
S1-010027 LS on removal of GPRS Network operation mode III	N1
S1-010160 Reply to SA2 on eMLPP for PS Domain	Siemens

Document <u>S1-010038</u> contained a liaison statement on the provision of eMLPP for PS domain. SA2 is asking for eLMPP for the packet switched domain and not for the IM subsystem. However, it is not required for the IM domain since eMLPP is designed for the CS domain and the PS domain has other mechanisms such as QoS.

It was decided to send a liaison statement back indicating that eMLPP is not applicable to the PS.

The response was provided in document <u>\$1-010160</u>. It was approved.

Document <u>S1-010101</u> contained a liaison statement on Removal of GPRS Network Operation Mode III. It was not sure what Network Operation Mode III is, but it was noted that this is a copy to SA1 and there is no reference to it in 22.060. It was decided to note it. It was also decided to note also a reply from CN1 in document <u>S1-010027</u>.

5.1.4 SA4

S1-0100	Packet Switched Conversational Multimedia Applications;	SA 4
	Default Codecs	

<u>\$1-010009</u> contained a liaison statement on Packet Switched Conversational Multimedia Applications and Default Codecs. It was noted pending any further information.

5.2 CN

5.2.1 CN1

<u>\$1-010024</u>	Emergency Call Indication in the network (Copy SA1)	N1
<u>S1-010025</u>	LS on DL indication of the network interface (Copy SA1)	N1
<u>S1-010026</u>	Response "Re-establish Capability for Emergency call" from SA1	N1
<u>\$1-010028</u>	Response to LS on missing definition of high quality signal for UMTS and on comparing UMTS and GSM signal quality (copy to SA1)	N1
<u>S1-010031</u>	LS on Problem with GPRS and Roaming	N1
<u>\$1-010163</u>	Reply on "Re-establish Capability for Emergency call" from SA1	Ericsson

Document <u>S1-010024</u> contained a liaison statement on Emergency Call Indication in the network. It was copied to SA1 and was noted.

Document <u>S1-010025</u> contained a liaison statement on on DL indication of the network interface. It was copied to SA1 and was noted.

Document <u>S1-010026</u> contained a liaison statement on Re-establish Capability for Emergency call. This resulted from a CR from NTT DoCoMo, which was passed to CN1 for discussion. It was indicated that the feature is no longer required.

It was decided to send a reply to CN1, which was provided in <u>S1-010163</u>. It was approved.

Document <u>S1-010028</u> contained a liaison statement responding to a LS on missing definition of high quality signal for UMTS and on comparing UMTS and GSM signal quality. It was copied to SA1 and was noted.

Document S1-010031 contained a liaison statement on a Problem with GPRS and Roaming.

If an Operator A has a Roaming agreement with operator B, but only for Circuit Switched services not for GPRS (both networks supporting GPRS).

The customer moves from operator A's coverage to operator B's coverage. Operator B should accept that customer's attach/registration attempts on network B for circuit switched services, but should reject the GPRS attach

Instead of such behaviour, two different implementations have been identified:

- According to 3GPP specifications, the customer is denied from the whole operator B's network (CS and PS domains) (error cause #11 "PLMN not allowed" of TS 04.08 R'97)
- A manufacturer's specific implementation tries to avoid such problem sending another error cause value (#7 "GPRS service not allowed" of TS 04.08 R'97), but according to the TS 04.08 the MS is not allowed to try anymore to attach to a PS domain of any GSM network unless it is switched off and on.

This clearly needs to be corrected. The CRs to do this are presented in document <u>S1-010129</u>, <u>S1-010130</u> and <u>S1-010131</u>, which will be dealt with in section 6.2.

S1-010231 Periodic PLMN selection attempt	France Telecom
---	----------------

Document S1-010231 contained a proposed liaison statement to CN1 on Periodic Network selection attempts. S1 approved some months ago a mechanism for periodic network selection attempt for R4. With this mechanism, if a user is in international roaming and has selected and registered on a VPLMN which is not in one of the preference list, user or operator, the UE, if in automatic mode, shall make periodic attempts to return to a PLMN of the lists.

The liaison statement is intended to remind CN1 of the requirements of SA1.

It was approved.

5.2.2 CN4

There was no input from CN4.

5.2.3 CN3

	LS requesting clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	N3
<u>S1-010142</u>	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	SIEMENS
S1-010252	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in	SIEMENS
S1-010253	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in	SIEMENS
S1-010254	Restructuring of 22.002	SIEMENS

Document <u>S1-010064</u> contained a LS requesting clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS. CN3 proposed to restructure the document and to correct and adapt it to UMTS capabilities to avoid inconsistencies with 27.001, 23.910 and 29.007, which arose in the past.

The CR to implement this is provided in <u>\$1-010142</u>. It was noted that there are two changes in this specification. Changes, which contain some functional corrections and editorial changes.

It was decided to separate the CRs. Document S1-010252 contained the CR to R99 for the functional change with the equivalent to Rel-4 in S1-010253. The restructuring of 22.002 was provided in S1-010254.

They were put on email approval with a view to sending them to SA #11 for approval.

5.2.4 CN2

S1-010032 LS "Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	N2
--	----

Document <u>S1-010032</u> contained a liaison statement from N2 on "Support of earlier CAMEL phases". This was dealt with in the CAMEL ad hoc and is reported on in section 6.1.

5.3 T

5.3.1 T2

<u>\$1-010007</u>	Discussion document on UE functionality split over physical devices	TSG-T2
<u>\$1-010017</u>	Discussion document on UE functionality split over physical devices (Copy SA1)	T2
<u>\$1-010102</u>	Response to LS (T2-000793) on discussion document on UE functionality split over physical devices	SA2
S1-010165	Report on UE functionality split over physical devices	BT

S1-010166 LS on UE functionality split over physical devices	BT
--	----

Document <u>S1-010007</u> (which is the same as <u>S1-010017</u>) contained a liaison statement from T2 on UE functionality split over physical devices. TSG-T2 has continued its discussions on the issues raised in **SP-000353** on the distribution of call control applications in external devices and in **SP-000313** (TP-000115) on Requirements and Scenarios for Call Handling; i.e. the control of calls by external devices and the probable security issues associated with it.

An example is given in **Annex 1**, which in itself illustrates quite a few problem areas. This is not a unique use case but it is typical of the type of use cases that outside standard development organisations show. However, it did highlight the problems that can occur with an obscure case and begs the question of how many problems would occur with more realistic examples.

In **Annex 2** some principal models on the UE functionality split over physical devices are given to provide a starting point for explicit requirements on the relevant interfaces.

In TSG SA, the first question was "what are the requirements", which is why it comes to SA1. This is, in essence, the theme of <u>S1-010102</u>, which contained the liaison statement from SA2.

There is a work item from T2, which SA1 can use for this work.

It was decided to have an ad hoc during this meeting to scope the work. An input to the ad hoc providing some background was provided in <u>S1-010165</u> and a liaison statement back to the other groups was provided in <u>S1-010166</u>.

This LS contains an initial analysis from the S1 perspective as developed in a subgroup of 19 people. It was suggested that S1 furthers the requirements in this area under the IMS adhoc group and this was agreed. The LS was approved.

S1-010010 Terminal Capabilities	TSG T2
S1-010023 Terminal Capability Negotiation	N1

Document <u>S1-010010</u> contained a discussion document on Terminal Capabilities. It is seen to be necessary to have an information store in the 3GPP core network, which "knows" about the capabilities of a given terminal at any one time. This information store needs to be updated when the UE capabilities change, for example when a user changes ME, or when a user connected a TE to an MT. In this way, service delivery can be optimised to suit the user's current environment.

This document gives some examples of what can be done with this information and what considerations should be taken into account.

Certainly there is a need to identify what information is required and where it should be stored in relation to the applications and features that may need to use (or wish to use) this information. It was questioned why SA1 should specify where the data should be stored. There was support for this approach, but SA1 should still specify who should store the information and who should have access to it.

Interestingly, SA1 has discussed the issue of identifying a UE by the IMEI and this was rejected. Moreover, document <u>S1-010023</u> contained a liaison statement from CN1 indicating that we should not use the classmark either. What, therefore, is left?

It was decided to pass this to the VHE ad hoc for discussion. We should expect a report at the next meeting and on the VHE mailing list.

<u>\$1-010021</u>	Reply to conformance test requirements for application layer	T2
	test	

Document <u>S1-010021</u> contained a reply from T2 to T1 on conformance test requirements for application layer test. When viewing the list of features that was identified by T1 as possible areas requiring conformance

specification, it was identified by T2 that Multimedia Messaging Service was missing. This is a standardised service that will need conformance testing to ensure interoperability between terminals and network elements.

One of the current implementations of the communication between the User Agent and the network element (MMS Relay), supported by the specifications, is based on WAP. For this implementation the conformance testing scheme produced by WAP can be used. On the other hand, for the testing of the network elements, some additional signalling expertise from T1 might be helpful.

The document was noted by SA1.

5.3.2 T3

<u>\$1-010046</u>	TR 31.900 - SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking	T3
	Aspects	
<u>\$1-010047</u>	SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking Aspects	T3
<u>S1-010167</u>	LS on TR 31.900 - SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking	One2one
	Aspects	
<u>\$1-010168</u>	LS on USAT interpreter stage 1	Motorola
S1-010186	Background information for a new feature on STK (A new event	Celltick
	Key Identification)	
<u>\$1-010196</u>	Indication of Key Identification	Celltick
<u>\$1-010200</u>	Indication of Key Identification	Celltick

T3 have drafted a technical report TR 31.900 on SIM/USIM internal and external interworking aspects. It describes the different cases of interaction between a GSM-SIM or a 3G-UICC and a GSM or 3G ME with a special focus on the diverse scenarios that can apply in a mixed 2G/3G network environment.

Depending on the technical properties of other involved network elements, particularly during authentication and key agreement, the ICC and the ME may or must support some specific features to allow for compatibility. This is a complex matter and has generated some amount of confusion. This TR gives a guideline by summarising the important details and applying them to the possible cases of security interworking along the transmission chain. The TR further explains the options of interworking that exist internally when a SIM and one or more USIM(s) are implemented together on a single UICC.

Before the TR will be sent to 3GPP TSG T for information and further deliberation, T3 are asking S1, S3, T2 and N1 for comments.

In addition, T3 intend to hold an AdHoc meeting on that issue on 28 February 2001 - as part of the next meeting in Sophia-Antipolis - to include the received comments and finalise the document. Interested delegates from S1, S3, T2 and N1are kindly invited to take part in the discussion.

The document itself was provided in <u>\$1-010047</u>.

A liaison statement back was provided in <u>S1-010167</u>. S1 has checked version 0.2.0 of the report and did not identify any conflict with the set of service requirements defined by S1 for Release-99. S1 looks forward to receiving the final version of the TR and will be happy to provide the group expertise should it be required by T3. The liaison statement was approved.

S1-010144 Elaboration of KEY IDENTIFICATION E	EVENT TSG-T3 chairman
S1-010186 Background information for a new feature Key Identification)	re on STK (A new event Celltick
S1-010196 Indication of Key Identification	Celltick
S1-010240 Indication of Key Identification	Celltick

Document <u>S1-010144</u> contained a liaison statement from the chairman of T3 on the Elaboration of KEY IDENTIFICATION EVENT.

This feature introduces a new "event" that indicates that a key on the MMI has been pressed and includes the key identification, in accordance with the "Get Inkey" command.

This proposal puts the onus of detecting a key being pressed on the mobile, whilst "freeing up" the USAT to perform other activities. Currently, for example, if the USAT wishes to detect a key being pressed, it has to issue the Get Inkey command to the ME and wait for the key to be pressed, and thus cannot carry on with other activities, such as updating or scrolling the display.

There was a serious concern for the security of this feature. However, it was noted that the purpose of SA1 is to identify if there is a requirement and, if so, it is up to someone else to identify how it can be implemented to maintain security.

A description of the original request was provided in <u>\$1-010186</u> and the CR to implement this was provided in document <u>\$1-010196</u>.

SA1 did think that this would be a useful feature, although it was clear that it would only make release 4 if a complete set of CRs is available. Therefore, the CR in <u>\$1-010196</u> was approved in principle, and the document <u>\$1-010186</u> was noted, but a liaison statement was required to explain that this should only be approved for Rel-4 if a complete set is provide.

The liaison statement was provided in \$1-010200.

A shadow CR was provided in document <u>S1-010240</u>. The CR in <u>S1-010196</u> and liaison statement in <u>S1-010200</u> were endorsed by SA1, but do rely on the T3 completing the package. If it is not complete, then the feature will be for Rel-5 only.

S1-010145 USAT interpreter stage 1	T3	
------------------------------------	----	--

It was commented that this stage 1 has been presented to SA1 for the purposes of giving SA1 the chance to comment or take control. Mr Cataldo agreed to receive comments that will be put into a response to T3 in document \$1-010168.

In it, S1 indiates that it has briefly reviewed the Stage 1 and the proposed changes to the Stage 1 are acceptable. It was noted that the term "MS" is used, and it is recommend that the term "UE" is used consistently with other specifications.

The liaison statement in <u>\$1-010168</u> was approved.

5.4 RAN

S1-010006 LS on Requirements for PLMN selection and reselection	SA #10
S1-010029 LS on PLMN Selection and Re-selection Issues	N1
S1-010057 LS on Requirements for PLMN selection and reselection	R2
S1-010170 LS on PLMN Selection and Re-selection Issues	France Telecom

Document <u>S1-010006</u> contained a liaison statement from R2 (also contained in <u>S1-010057</u>) asking for some issues on PLMN selection and reselection to be clarified. A response to this liaison statement was provided from CN1.

It was noted that there is a workshop ongoing, which is dealing with UE in idle mode, although this could be dealt with there.

It was decided to reply to the senders and the workshop. A proposal for this liaison statement was provided in document <u>\$1-010170</u>. It was approved and will be sent out.

S1-010058	Response to LS (N1-001039) on Missing definition of high	R2
	quality signal for UMTS and on comparing UMTS and GSM	
	signal quality (Copy SA1)	

Document <u>S1-010058</u>, which contained response to LS (N1-001039) on Missing definition of high quality signal for UMTS and on comparing UMTS and GSM signal quality (and copied to SA1) was noted.

S1-010034	LS for clarification of MPTY issues	N4
<u>\$1-010050</u>	Request for clarification on disconnecting Multiparty calls when	G4
	a single call is active	
<u>S1-010051</u>	Request for clarification on MPTY auxiliary state when only one	G4
	remote party remains	
S1-010171	Clarification on disconnecting Multiparty calls when a single call	Siemens
	is active	

Documents <u>S1-010034</u>, <u>S1-010050</u> and <u>S1-010051</u> contained liaison statements from CN4 and GERAN 4 asking for clarification of multiparty.

The response from SA1 was provided in document <u>S1-010171</u> in which answers are given to the questions raised. The liaison statement was approved.

5.5 GERAN

<u>\$1-010052</u>	LS on Creation of a new specification to handle implementation issues caused by changes to the Release '97 GPRS specifications (Copy SA1)	GERAN
<u>S1-010053</u>	Interworking between modified Public Land Mobile Network (PLMN) supporting GPRS and Legacy GPRS mobiles	GERAN
<u>\$1-010054</u>	LS on DL indication of the network interface (Copy SA1)	GERAN
S1-010172	GPRS clarifications	Lucent

Document <u>\$1-010052</u> contained a liaison statement on creation of a new specification to handle implementation issues caused by changes to the Release '97 GPRS specifications, and the specification was provided in <u>\$1-010053</u>. Any subsequent changes resulting from this will be put in the specification as required.

Document S1-010054 was copied to SA1 and was noted.

The document number S1-010172, which was allocated for a response was not needed and so the document was withdrawn.

5.6 GSM Association

<u>\$1-010061</u>	LS on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	GSMA SERG
<u>S1-010173</u>	CR on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	NTT DoCoMo
<u>S1-010174</u>	CR on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	NTT DoCoMo
<u>\$1-010156</u>	Definition of Zone	NTT DoCoMo

Document <u>\$1-010061</u> contained a liaison statement on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP from GSM Association SERG. There exists a discrepancy in the way zones can be defined. This may cause problems with respect to zonal barring. Zones are defined in one of two ways (depending on the document referred to) as follows:

- Countries are grouped into zones based on the first digit of their international dialling code. So for instance, the USA with code +1 is in zone 1; the UK with code +44 is in zone 4 and Australia with code +61 is in zone 6. There is one exception to this in that Europe is considered to be one zone even though the codes for the countries within it span the +3 and +4 ranges.
- 2. The X.121 system is used in which the numbers for countries appear to be based on IMSIs. The zone a country is dependent on the first digit of this 'IMSI' number. So, taking the above examples, the USA with

codes 310-316 is in zone 3; the UK with codes 234-237 is in zone 2 and Australia with code 505 is in zone 5.

GSM A SERG recommend that zones should be defined based on the international dialling plan (option 1 above).

- The reasons for this are as follows:
- Customers understand the International Dialling Plan; they use it frequently. If explained correctly, the concept of zonal barring based upon it, should be straightforward.
- It would appear to be the easier option to implement and maintain (as the network already needs to maintain details of the International Dialling Plan). There will be no need to convert the 'IMSI' range of numbers into country codes, which can then be incorporated into the barring definition. (The number the customer dialled is the information that is checked to ensure bars are not being violated.)

A proposed CR to implement this was provided in document <u>\$1-010156</u>. Generally this was agreed-to, but that for a Release 99 CR the category should be "F". Moreover, a shadow CR is required for Release 4.

A revision of <u>S1-010156</u> and a CR for Rel-4 were provided in documents <u>S1-010173</u> and <u>S1-010174</u>. It was agreed to send the CRs to SA #11 for approval.

6 Release 1999 and earlier

S1-010088 Deletion of reference to GSM 10.71	MCC Sec
--	---------

Document S1-010088 contained a CR to 02.71 to delete a reference to GSM 10.71. GSM 10.71 is not a published document, and therefore cannot be referenced in an ETSI publication. The CR was approved and will be sent to SA #11 for approval.

6.1 CAMEL

<u>\$1-010103</u>	Meeting Report of SA1 CAMEL Ad Hoc 30th Jan - 1st Feb 2001	CAMEL ad hoc
S1-010194	Updated meeting Report of SA1 CAMEL Ad Hoc 30th Jan - 1st	CAMEL ad hoc
	Feb 2001	

The report of the last ad hoc was provided in document <u>\$1-010103</u>. The CAMEL phase 4 ad hoc meeting was held 30th January to 1st February 2001, in Austin, Texas (USA) hosted by SBC. It was chaired by Michel Grech from Lucent Technologies. The meeting notes and this report were prepared by Michel Grech.

In summary it was decided by the CAMEL adhoc that:

- ?? A network entity supporting CAMEL Phase 4 is only required to support CAMEL Phase 2 in as far as it possible. In CAMEL Phase 2, network entities are required to support Phase 1, where as a network supporting CAMEL Phase 3 is required to support Phase 2 and Phase 1. The principle used for CAMEL Phase 4 was that a network need not support all previous CAMEL phases, but needs to support a base line version. CAMEL Phase 2 was chose as this offers far greater functionality than Phase 1 and is expected to be more widely deployed that CAMEL Phase 3. A liaison statement was written by the ad hoc on this subject and requires TSG SA1 approval for sending to TSG CN2.
- ?? In addition to refinements of existing requirements, additional requirements have been introduced to CAMEL Phase 4. Some concerns were raised as to the current scope of Phase 4 and ability by TSG CN2 to be able to complete all the work requested by Release 5. The following new features have been added to CAMEL Phase 4:
 - Enhancements of dialled services.
 - Notification of GPRS mobility management to CSE.
 - Provision of location information of called subscriber.
 - Notification of charging information to CSE extended to cover the MT case (previously this was agreed for MO and MF calls).
- ?? All CRs agreed by the ad hoc were agreed by general consensus.

?? No dates for an additional SA1 CAMEL Ad Hoc were planned as none is currently forseen.

A revision of the report, based on comments from the ad hoc, was provided in \$1-010194, which was noted.

<u>\$1-010104</u>	Remedy for incorrect implementation of CR 22.078-062r5	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010105</u>	Alignment with stage 2 & 3, and some editorial corrections	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>\$1-010106</u>	Alignment with stage 2 & 3, and some editorial corrections	CAMEL ad hoc

There is no technical substance to <u>\$1-010104</u>; it is purely editorial. However, it was still decided to send this CR to \$A #11 for approval.

Documents S1-010105 and S1-010106 were originally intended to be shadow CRs to the original CR 22.078-062r5 for release 4 and 5. It was noted that the CRs contain a mix of editorial and functional changes. However, this CR is a shadow CR to a CR that was approved in SA #10. Hence, it will need to be put forward. It was agreed to be send S1-010104, S1-010105 and S1-010106 to SA #11 for approval.

In the future, this type of CR will not be accepted by SA1. A much clearer cover sheet will be required.

<u>\$1-010107</u>	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>\$1-010108</u>	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>\$1-010109</u>	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>\$1-010126</u>	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010223</u>	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	SA1
<u>S1-010224</u>	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010241</u>	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
S1-010242	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	CAMEL ad hoc

At the last meeting, it was decided that support of CAMEL phase 3 automatically implies support of phases 2 and 1. However, at the ad hoc, there was a request that CAMEL phase 4 need not support the features of CAMEL phase 3, although the functions of CAMEL phase 3 are included in phase 4 although they are provided differently.

It was stated that most operators are likely to implement CAMEL phase 4 rather than CAMEL phase 3; i.e. to jump from CAMEL phase 2 to CAMEL phase 4. This view was not shared by all of SA1. Much of this will depend on the timeframes within which vendors will make the various phases available.

It was stated that there are two solutions; to have full compatibility between CAMEL phase 4, 3 and 2 and have all the complexities to implement it or to cut out CAMEL phase 3 whilst still providing the functionality of CAMEL phase 3 in phase 4.

It was the consensus of the group, that:

"TSG SA WG1 have discussed for CAMEL phase 4 the issue of support of earlier CAMEL phases. The conclusion is indicated by the following text which SA1 has agreed for inclusion in the CAMEL Phase 4 (Release 5) Stage 1 specification:

"If an IPLMN or VPLMN supports CAMEL Phase 4, it shall also provide the functionality of all previous CAMEL phases. Phase 4 network signalling shall support interworking with CAMEL Phases 3 and 2."

It was decided that documents <u>S1-010107</u> and <u>S1-010108</u> are not contentious and should be sent to SA #11 for approval. This was agreed. However, it is <u>S1-010109</u> that is a problem. This was subsequently revised to <u>S1-010224</u>.

The intention of S1-010224 was to make the support generic; i.e. CAMEL phase N shall support N-1. The question raised was if CAMEL N also support N-2? This means that CAMEL phase 4 will support CAMEL phase

3, 2 and 1. There was some confusion as to what support means. Does it mean the functionality or the signalling? Clarification was subsequently provided in S1-010241.

A revision of \$1-010224 was provided in \$1-010242. It was agreed to send this document to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010126</u> contained a proposed liaison statement from SA1 to CN2. This was revised to <u>S1-010223</u>. However, due to the revision of <u>S1-010224</u>, a revision was provided in <u>S1-010241</u>. The liaison statement in <u>S1-010241</u> was approved.

<u>S1-010110</u>	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc	
<u>S1-010111</u>	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc	
<u>S1-010112</u>	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc	
<u>\$1-010188</u>	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc	
<u>\$1-010189</u>	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc	
<u>S1-010190</u>	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc	

Documents <u>S1-010110</u>, <u>S1-010111</u> and <u>S1-010112</u> contain corrections to CAMEL phase 3 and the consequential change requests. There were some problems with these CRs, and so some discussion was held off line. The result was <u>S1-010188</u>, <u>S1-010189</u> and <u>S1-010190</u>.

The documents were agreed to be sent to SA #11 for approval if no comments were received by the end of the meeting.

No comments were received to the CRs in <u>S1-010189</u> and <u>S1-010190</u> and so it was decided to send the CRs to SA #11 for approval.

<u>S1-010113</u>	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010114</u>	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010115</u>	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	CAMEL ad hoc

Documents <u>\$1-010113</u>, <u>\$1-010114</u> and <u>\$1-010115</u> contain corrections to CAMEL phase 3 and the consequential change requests. It was agreed that they should be sent to SA #11 for approval unless comments are received by the end of the meeting. Since no comments were received, these CRs will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

<u>S1-010116</u>	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010117</u>	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010118</u>	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-/MT-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	CAMEL ad hoc

Documents <u>S1-010116</u>, <u>S1-010117</u> and <u>S1-010118</u> contain corrections to CAMEL phase 3 and the consequential change requests. It was agreed that they should be sent to SA #11 for approval unless comments are received by the end of the meeting. Since no comments were received, these CRs will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

6.2 Network Selection and GPRS

S1-010129 CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	SIEMENS
S1-010130 CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '98)	SIEMENS
S1-010131 CR to 22.011 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '99)	SIEMENS
S1-010132 CR to 22.011 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release 4)	SIEMENS
S1-010198 CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
S1-010199 CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
S1-010245 CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens

Document <u>S1-010129</u> contained a CR to 02.11 on roaming restrictions for GPRS, together with shadow CRs for 02.11 R98 and 22.011 R99 and Rel-4. This related to document <u>S1-010031</u> in section 5.2.1.

This document was agreed-to in principle. A revision is required to <u>S1-010129</u> and to <u>S1-010132</u>. These were provided in documents <u>S1-010198</u> and <u>S1-010199</u>. These documents were withdrawn and replaced with documents <u>S1-010225</u> and <u>S1-010226</u>.

It was agreed to send <a>S1-010225 to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010226</u>, however, was found to be in error and was revised to <u>S1-010245</u>. It was agreed to send to SA #11 for approval.

Documents <u>S1-010130</u> and <u>S1-010131</u> were provided subsequently. Both documents <u>S1-010130</u> and <u>S1-010131</u> will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

7 Work Items (SA1 Responsibility)

7.1 Provisioning of IP-based multimedia services

S1-010011 Liaison statement on IP Multimedia sessions	SA #10
---	--------

Document <u>S1-010011</u> contained a liaison statement from SA #10 on IP multimedia sessions. Whilst TSG-SA did not conclude on a specific answer to the technical questions raised in the liaison statement (S2-002223) from SA WG2, a number of principles have been agreed by TSG-SA as guidance to SA WG1 and SA WG2 for their work in defining the service requirements and architecture for the control of IP multimedia services. SA WG1 and SA WG2 are encouraged to propose their own solution in line with the recommendations above.

It was decided that this should be discussed in the IMS ad hoc.

<u>\$1-010033</u>	LS requesting clarification on interworking between IM domain and CS networks	N3
<u>S1-010151</u>	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	Ericsson
<u>S1-010162</u>	Definition of "Basic voice call"	Alcatel, Fujitsu, Nokia, Siemens
<u>S1-010154</u>	Comments to the LS SP-000696	AT&T Wireless
S1-010182	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	ad hoc
<u>\$1-010183</u>	LS giving clarification on interworking between IM domain and CS networks	ad hoc
<u>S1-010221</u>	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	Alcatel

A liaison statement on the interworking between IM domains and CS networks was provided from N3 in document <u>\$1-010033</u>. In a joint meeting, CN1 and CN3 have addressed the required work for the IMS, the interworking between IMS and CS external networks for multimedia services.

In SA TSG-SA#10 it was concluded that the interworking between IMS and CS external networks is needed for voice calls. TSG-SA expressed in its report of meeting #10 and in a liaison statement to SA1 and SA2 (cc to CN1, CN3 and CN4) a requirement to support voice calls between IMS and CS domain users. An excerpt from the report:

"Conclusion: ... It was agreed that the IMS shall support voice capabilities and it shall be possible to have basic voice calls between IMS users and users in the CS domain/PSTN-style networks."

However, it is not clear to CN1 and CN3 whether the IMS and CS domain interworking is meant to be limited only to voice calls or if the interworking should cover also multimedia calls. Also, CN3 has a work item on this subject. If the IMS and CS domain interworking need not cover multimedia calls, the related CN3 work item can be suppressed.

Document <u>S1-010151</u> contained a proposed CR to 22.228 to introduce the interworking between IMS and CS domain is applicable to basic voice only. There were some problems with this. Before this was approved, it was decided to look at what the definition of basic voice call is.

To this end, document <u>\$1-010162</u> contained a proposal.

A BVC is used for calls between the IMS and CS/PSTN and can convey only a speech component. The definition of the BVC pertains only to the boundary between the IMS and the CS/PSTN. If more than one IMS party is involved in an communication with a PSTN party/parties, the communication between the IMS parties shall not be adversely impacted by the presence of a PSTN party. Supplementary service elements identified for support on the boundary interface are CLIR and Call Forwarding.

Another document, <u>S1-010154</u>, also addresses what is a basic voice call, but looks at it from a regulatory requirement. In particular, it seeks to add Lawful surveillance, Call tracing, Priority access, Emergency calls, Number portability and Global text telephony. Also, the document looks at roaming.

It was decided that a group shall get together to discuss this and combine documents <u>\$1-010151</u>, <u>\$1-010161</u> and <u>\$1-010154</u>. The CR was presented in document \$1-010182 and the LS was provided in <u>\$1-010183</u>. The liaison statement was approved but it was reported that more work was required on the CR.

The CR in document S1-010182 was revised before it was presented at the meeting in <u>S1-010221</u>. It was subsequently revised and was provided in <u>S1-010243</u>. This was revised once again to <u>S1-010246</u>. It was agreed to send <u>S1-010246</u> to SA #11 for approval.

S1-010044	LS to TSGs T2, SA1, SA2 and SA4 regarding conformance test	T1
	requirements for application layer test	
S1-010184	LS to TSGs T1 regarding conformance test requirements for	Nokia
	application layer test	

Document <u>S1-010044</u> contained a liaison statement regarding the conformance test requirements for application layer tests. In particular T1 indicate that SA1 needs to look at:

SA1	Provisioning of IP-based multimedia services
SA1	Facsimile
SA1,2,3	VHE enhancements
SA1,2,3	OSA enhancements (rel 5 only?)

It was considered a little early to start writing tests for IMS, VHE and OSA and that fax does not belong to SA1. A liaison statement to this effect was provided in document <u>S1-010184</u>. The liaison statement was approved.

0.4.04.00.47 0.4.74.10.47 04.4.4.10.14.44.44.44.44.44.44.44.44.44.44.44.44.
S1-010045 SAT/USAT Control of IP Multimedia Services
S1-010056 LS "Control of IP multimedia services" CN Ad hoc
S1-010100 LS "Control of IP multimedia services" SA2
S1-010187 Response to LS on SAT/USAT Control of IP Multimedia SBC Services
S1-010191 Response to LS "Control of IP multimedia services" SBC

Document <u>S1-010045</u> contained a liaison statement from T3 on SAT/USAT Control of IP Multimedia Services. T3 are asking for some joint work suggests that an ad hoc meeting between interested parties in both S1 and T3 be held to discuss the various ways that the USIM can contribute to the success of IP multimedia services. The next plenary of TSG-T3 will be held on the 1st and 2nd of March hosted by ETSI, and will be preceded by 3 days of T3 ad hoc meetings, (26th to 28th of February). T3 would be pleased to organise a joint session during this period.

It was suggested that since the work is still in its early stages, the meeting should be a little later. Perhaps this could be held prior to the SA1 Helsinki meeting in May. Either way, it is important to have the service requirements included into this.

A liaison statement back to T3 to explain this was provided <u>S1-010187</u>. The chairman elect indicated that he would prefer to specify a date other than the first day of the next meeting. Rather, it was preferred to communicate the intention of SA1 to T3 to have a joint meeting. This will be done by the chairman elect.

This was agreed and the liaison statement in <u>\$1-010187</u> was withdrawn.

Another document on control of IP Multimedia services was provided in document <u>S1-010056</u>. The liaison statement from CN explains some concern on the lack of clarity over whether all the three possibilities of using CAP, SIP and/or OSA will be included in the approved version of the IP multimedia specifications and could lead to abortive work on developing the details of a possibility, which will then be discarded. For this reason, the TSG CN WG1/2/3/4 joint meeting ask TSG-SA WG1 and TSG-SA WG2 to reach a speedy conclusion on which of the options listed above should be developed in TSG-CN. If clear guidance is not available for CN to continue detailed technical discussions at their next meeting, it will be very difficult for CN to complete the work in time for the closure of UMTS Release 5 at the end of 2001.

Given that TSG-CN WG5 work on OSA, the choice of options is important to them; it would therefore be useful for the guidance from SA WG1 and SA WG2 to be copied to TSG-CN WG5. Hence, they would like a joint meeting.

The point is that just one mechanism should be selected and to exclude the other two. This was not accepted by at least one delegate. At an earlier meeting of SA1, it was suggested that the service requirements would best define which mechanism is most appropriate, but until the service requirements are defined, the option needs to be kept open.

Nonetheless, It was commented that a solution needs to be made as quickly as possible to avoid work on protocols that will never be applied.

It was decided to get together some people and put down the views and opinions and then write a liaison statement back to CN.

The liaison statement was provided in document <u>\$1-010191</u> (labelled as 193).

There was some concern that all three options were being promoted rather than indicating that the door should not be closed on the functionality provided by the mechanisms. Some agreed text does occur in the liaison statement from SA #10 in <u>S1-010011</u> and perhaps this could be used.

It was decided to revise the liaison statement to \$\frac{\text{S1-010248}}{\text{.}}\$. This LS was approved.

<u>\$1-010090</u>	Introduction of charging for IPMultimedia and Event Based	TIM S.p.A.
	Charging	
<u>\$1-010192</u>	Introduction of charging for IPMultimedia and Event Based	TIM S.p.A.
	Charging	

Document <u>S1-010090</u> contained a CR to 22.115 add features for alignment with new functionality defined in TS 22.228 and to provide event based charging. New information is provided by the serving network and by the user to apply IP Multimedia Charging and Event Based Charging and new special cases are described to apply IP Multimedia and Event Based Charging.

This was passed to an ad hoc.

The response was provided in document <u>\$1-010192</u>. It was agreed to send the CR to \$A #11 for approval. However, it was noted that in the last clause there may be limits as to what actually may be achieved and this may require further study.

<u>\$1-010098</u>	LS on IM Emergency Call without USIM	SA2
<u>S1-010193</u>	Reponse to LS on IM Emergency Call without USIM	AT&T
<u>\$1-010216</u>	CR to 22.101 on Clarifications on IMS emergency call support	Nokia

Document S1-010098 contained a liaison statement from SA2 on on IM Emergency Call without USIM. It was noted that within SA2 a proposal was made that all emergency calls with or without a USIM from IM subscribers are made on the CS network. This is being done to make the implementation easier. SA2 requested clarification of the requirements from SA1. Questions raised included the following:

Is it required that an IM UE without a USIM be able to make an emergency call via the PS domain and the IM subsystem in Rel 5?

Is it required that an IM UE with a USIM but which is not attached to the SGSN be able to make an emergency call via the PS domain and the IM subsystem in Rel 5?

Is it acceptable for R5 for all emergency calls from IM capable UEs to be delivered over the CS domain?

Subsequent discussion within SA1 indicated that delivery of IMS emergency calls over the circuit switched network:

- 1. implictly mandates dual mode terminals,
- assumes CS will always be there (that the user does not need to detach from IM and re-attach to the CS domain).
- 3. there may be problems/failure in attaching to CS domain,
- 4. user must have visibility of what resources (possibly charge) he is using in the network.

There has been some work by SA2 on emergency calls in the IM domain and it would be unfortunate to lose this for Rel-5. It would appear that SA2 are having problems with the more unusual cases; i.e. roaming is not allowed, requirements for USIMs etc..

It was questioned if will be a stand-alone IM subsystem? If not, then it is possible to go the way of SA2 (notwithstanding the four points above).

It was suggested to stick with the simple case of allowing emergency calls when there is a context and a USIM and leave the rest of the scenarios for later. It was also suggested that the SDOs check with the regulators to ensure that this is acceptable.

A proposed liaison statement was provided in document <u>\$1-010193</u>.

It was commented that some regulatory regimes do have some requirements for emergency calls without a USIM and this text is not consistent with this. Moreover, it was agreed to collect comments from SDOs.

It was agreed to have a revision of document <u>\$1-010193</u> in line with the comments made.

A revision is required and was presented in document <u>\$1-010249</u>. The liaison statement indicates that \$A1 does not wish to delay the availability of R5, and has considered the different requirements options, and concluded that a phased approach is be required. Given the potential complexity of the SIM/USIM and SIM/USIM-less scenarios, \$1 has concluded that:-

- ?? the IMS shall support emergency "voice calls" from an IM UE with SIM/USIM within the IMS for R5
- ?? the IMS is not required to support emergency "voice calls" from an IM UE without a SIM/USIM within the IMS for R5

and that the support of emergency "voice calls" from IM UE without a SIM/USIM within the IMS is to be considered for a subsequent release.

Moreover, this liaison indicated "It shall be possible for Release 5 to enable compliance with regional regulatory requirements for emergency services. This may include the need to support SIM/USIM-less emergency call."

The liaison statement in S1-010249 was approved.

A CR to implement the understanding as per <u>\$1-010193</u> was provided in document <u>\$1-010216</u>. Given the concerns over the liaison statement in <u>\$1-010193</u> it was decided to revise the CR.

The revision was provided in <u>\$1-010250</u>. It was agreed, to send this to \$A #11 for approval.

<u>S1-010143</u>	IMS Service Examples and Overall Requirements (Discussion	SIEMENS
	document)	
S1-010149	Proposal for new Stage 1 specification : Multimedia Service	Vodafone
	Capability Requirements	
S1-010150	Multimedia service examples	Ericsson

At the TSG SA Meeting #10 it was agreed that it is necessary to produce basic and advanced examples for IMS services, which can be used to verify that the capabilities provided by the network are present to support these services.

Document <u>S1-010143</u> is a first step to identify different service categories and to derive requirements on the underlying network. Numerous articles, reports (e.g. UMTS report No. 9 or the "Book of Visions 2000" (the report of the IST WSI Project)) and other documents are available that discuss and describe possible 3rd Generation mobile services and applications.

It is being asked that:

- ?? Based on this first draft of service examples, the detailed requirements for the offering these kinds of services should be analysed. Some specific services should be elaborated and described in more detail (1-2 pages per service).
- ?? These short service descriptions and the overall requirements should be the basis for the work within SA 2 to elaborate short functional flows for these services and to analyse if all required functions are available within the network.
- ?? In a second step applications in the IMS, that can become building blocks for service provisioning, should be identified.

This document was noted as a good start to this work. It will require some updating and will be dealt with in the next IMS ad hoc.

Document <u>S1-010149</u> a proposal for new Stage 1 specification : Multimedia Service Capability Requirements. This document also contains some examples of what is possible as per the last document <u>S1-010143</u>.

Document <u>\$1-010151</u> contained a presentation of Multimedia service examples. As an interesting presentation, it was noted in light of <u>\$1-010149</u> and <u>\$1-010143</u>.

<u>S1-010152</u>	Service control for different components of an IP multimedia	Ericsson
	session	

Document <u>S1-010152</u> contained a proposed CR to fulfil part of the requirement in <u>S1-010011</u>; i.e. it is no longer specified which tools shall be used to support IP multimedia applications.

It is clear that there is a potential problem in <u>S1-010011</u>, there was concern that there is a deletion of all the service control mechanisms. This view was supported by a number of delegates and since the text is descriptive rather than normative. SA1 is not trying to influence the choice of tools, but rather than delete the text, it was decided to reject this CR.

ı	<u>\$1-010153</u> Service re	quirements for local services	Ericsson	

Document <u>S1-010153</u> is proposing to clarify that users and/or terminals shall be able to indicate whether they wish a chosen address to be treated as a local address in a visited network or according to services offered from their home environment. (It should be noted that the network operator is always able to determine how the service request shall be treated, irrespective of the wish of the user and/or terminal.)

This service requirement should not be stated in the VHE specification, since readers may look there only to find requirement on VHE, and not in the IMS specification, since these requirements might not be solved in the IM subsystem.

The idea is to allow the user to indicate whether a service request concerns a local service, offered via a local address in a visited network, or a service offered from the home environment. The user and/or terminal shall be able to choose what should be the default option.

The mechanism needs to be flexible. Whilst it is not terribly useful for a network code used in the home network to give the home weather if you are in Capetown, but then again, it is not useful if all you can get is the local weather and not find out how to dress before going home.

The document was noted for now, and delegates were invited to raise this in either the IMS ad hoc or the VHE ad hoc.

S1-010185 Requirement for End-to-end encryption of IP multimedia	AT&T
Subsystem controlled VOIP	

Document <u>S1-010185</u> contained a proposal to add end-to-end encryption of IP multi-media Subsystem controlled VOIP. This would appear to be more applicable to SA3, but the source indicated that the comments of SA1 were sought before putting this to SA3.

There was general support for this, although it was commented that this could be one solution amongst many and that SA3 should not be lead to a particular solution.

It was questioned how much work this will be for the other groups. Perhaps a feasibility study is required before a decision is made to put this into release 5. A delay to release 5 is not acceptable.

It was requested that the requirement is required to be captured in a stage 1 and the most appropriate TS is 22.228.

Nonetheless, it was decided to send a liaison statement to SA3 regarding this work item. The liaison statement was provided in <u>S1-010247</u>.

This was further revised on line:

"S1 believes these matters should be dealt with by S3, and asks S3 to confirm that this functionality could be included within R5."

and was provided in <u>\$1-010261</u>. It was approved.

S1-010217 Plan for services scenarios activity within SA1	IP multimedia
	services ad hoc
	chair

Document <u>S1-010217</u> was provided to try and plan for further work on services scenarios, specifically for IP multimedia services. There have been also several individual contributions to propose additional service examples. Also there has been concern that SA1 should look not only IMS services but services over whole of release 5. A concern within SA1 was also how the "service examples" are documented as 3GPP only specifies the services capabilities not the services themselves.

It seems necessary to hold a physical meeting to solve the above issues, even though the scope exceeds IP multimedia services the IM ad hoc can been a suitable place for this activity. Thus a 2-3 day ad hoc meeting with specific agenda covering "services examples" is proposed.

There were some problems regarding the dates. It was decided to have the meeting from 5-8 March 2001 in Tempe, Arizona hosted by Motorola.

S1-010232	Standardisation of IMS Common Services and Advanced Service	ВТ
	Examples	

Document <u>S1-010232</u> was provided in response to the liaison statement SA #10 in <u>S1-010011</u>. Delegates were requested to read this document and to provide comments to the source (Peter Chaloner) by email.

7.2 Bearer Modification without pre-notification

- 12			
	S1-010055 Proposed working method for Service Modification	N3	

Document <u>S1-010055</u> contained what appears to be a liaison statement from CN3 to SA1 that was sent to the SA1 secretary. However, it was noted by the source that this is an old document and should not really be passed as a liaison statement. Since also it was agreed that the work is to be considered as part of Rel-5, it was requested to withdraw the document. The document was withdrawn.

7.3 VHE enhancements

<u>\$1-010039</u>	Clarification of VHE capable set of services	S2
<u>\$1-010041</u>	VHE User Profiles - Security issues	S3
S1-010081	VHE ADHOC #4 Meeting report	Editor
S1-010082	LS to S2 on VHE to R4	Adhoc group
S1-010083	VHE ADHOC #5 meeting report	Chair/Editor
	The Virtual Home Environment (Release 5) Clean copy of 096 submitted to S1 plenary	Editor
<u>\$1-010085</u>	Changes to TS 22.121 Release 4 - Update of 097 submitted to S1 Plenary	Editor
<u>\$1-010086</u>	Proposed Reply LS to S2 (S2-002093) on clarification of VHE requirements (Update of 100 (LS to S2) submitted to S1 plenary)	Editor
	The Virtual Home Environment (Release 5) Addition of User profile requirement and changes for clarification	VHE Ad hoc
<u>\$1-010201</u>	Proposed Reply LS to S2 (S2-002093) on clarification of VHE requirements (Update of 100 (LS to S2) submitted to S1 plenary)	Editor
<u>\$1-010206</u>	VHE ADHOC #4 Meeting report	Editor

Document <u>\$1-010041</u> contained a liaison statement from \$3 on security issues. This is to indicate that \$3 has received the responses from \$A1 and is working on the subject. It was noted.

Document <u>S1-010039</u> contained a liaison statement from SA2 requesting clarification of VHE capable set of services. The proposed response to this was provided in document <u>S1-010086</u>. Each of the requests for clarifications is dealt with in <u>S1-010086</u> and the invitation for a joint meeting with SA2 on VHE issues, proposed for the 27/28th of Feb in Sweden for further discussion is accepted.

There was a concern that the answer to point 2 is not clear. This resulted in a revision which was provided in document <u>\$1-010201</u>. It was approved.

Document <u>S1-010081</u> contained the VHE ADHOC #4 Meeting report and <u>S1-010083</u> contained the VHE ADHOC #5 meeting report. Both documents were noted, although document <u>S1-010081</u> was subsequently updated to <u>S1-010206</u> to include an updated delegates list. <u>S1-010206</u> was noted.

Document <u>S1-010085</u> contained a CR to TS 22.121 Release 4. This was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval if no comments were received by end of meeting. Since no comments were received, these CRs will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010084</u> was withdrawn in favour of a CR to 22.121 in <u>S1-010169</u>. This was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval if no comments were received by end of meeting. Since no comments were received, these CRs will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010082</u> contained a proposed liaison statement from SA1 to SA2 on VHE to R4. For Release 4 there are no additional requirements on VHE as compared to VHE Release '99. It was approved.

	S1-010087 Handling	of Service Provisioning requirements	Chair/Editor
--	--------------------	--------------------------------------	--------------

Document <u>S1-010087</u> contained an input document on the handling of Service Provision. This was prompted by a question from SA2 asking for a clarification. as to where Service Provision will be handled. SA2 (VHE-OSA drafting group) is addressing these issues in TR 23.955 and look to S1 (VHE-adhoc group) for guidance on requirements.

The issue of Service Provisioning includes discovery, selection and delivery of service. Requirements are needed from the User's perspective and network perspective. This area of work is related to VHE but not restricted to VHE as it covers other areas such as local service discovery, selection and activation.

This level of requirement has not been documented in any SA1 document and SA2 will need to have this requirement to progress its work especially for VHE provisioning. Since this area is strongly related to VHE. The VHE adhoc group seek advice on whether this work should be handled in TS 22.121 Rel-5, in a new TS on Service Provisioning or in TS 22.228 as this aspect also touches on IM services.

It was decided that this work shall be vested in the VHE ad hoc for the time being.

S1-010175 Rel-5 VHE service discovery Motorola
--

Document <u>S1-010175</u> contained a discussion document on the subject of service discovery for VHE. By discovery, it is intended that the user be able to know what services are available for use. A definition of the term would be useful.

It was guestioned if it is required; why not just advertise this in the newspaper?

It was decided to send this to the VHE group for consideration.

7.4 OSA enhancements

Answer to LS on request for OSA Interface Information	SA2
Meeting Report OSA adhoc #3	S1 OSA ad-hoc
Meeting Report OSA adhoc #4	SIEMENS
Discussion document on OSA Terminal Capabilities	SIEMENS
22.127 version 1.2.0 (Release 4)	S1 OSA ad-hoc
22.127 V 4.0.0	rapporteur
22.127 version 1.3.0 (Release 5)	rapporteur
Proposed LS to T2 MMS: Additional feedback to Request for OSA Interface Information, (T2-000556)	S1 OSA ad-hoc
CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on CS Call Control (Release 4)	SIEMENS
CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on User interaction(Release 4)	SIEMENS
Rel-5 OSA service discovery	Motorola
	Answer to LS on request for OSA Interface Information Meeting Report OSA adhoc #3 Meeting Report OSA adhoc #4 Discussion document on OSA Terminal Capabilities 22.127 version 1.2.0 (Release 4) 22.127 V 4.0.0 22.127 version 1.3.0 (Release 5) Proposed LS to T2 MMS: Additional feedback to Request for OSA Interface Information, (T2-000556) CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on CS Call Control (Release 4) CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on User interaction(Release 4) Rel-5 OSA service discovery

Document <u>S1-010097</u> contained a liaison statement from SA2 to T2 indicating that T2 would be well advised to collaborate with SA1 on the applicability of the OSA API to the MMS. It was noted.

The meeting report of OSA adhoc #3 was provided in document <u>S1-010133</u>. This should really have been seen at the last meeting, but it made no difference to the output from that meeting. It was noted.

The meeting report of OSA adhoc #4 was provided in document <u>S1-010134</u>. The meeting finalised the work on 22.127 for "Open Service Access" Release 4 and all requirements for later releases were removed. For Release 4 the meeting agreed to introduce an Event Notification Function, clarified requirements on call control and enhanced charging functions. The result is given in 22.127 version 1.2.0 (S1O00060). It was submitted to SA#10 and approved there.

Document S1-010136, which contained 22.127 version 1.2.0 (Release 4), has been superceded by <u>S1-010137</u> that was approved at SA #10. It was noted.

Document <u>S1-010138</u> contained a proposal for a Rel-5 version of 22.127. It contains some changes that are mainly editorial. It was noted, although it was made clear that it is not version 1.3.0, but rather a working draft. It was noted for the time being. It will be turned into a CR to 22.127 version 4.x.y when it is ready to be created using a CR to the release 4 version as a base.

Document <u>S1-010139</u> contained a proposed LS to T2 MMS: Additional feedback to Request for OSA Interface Information, (T2-000556). It was approved.

Document <u>S1-010140</u> contained a CR to 22.127. In the current OSA stage 1 (22.127 Version 4.0.0) there exists a requirement for the OSA interface to be able to create CS or PS calls. For release 4 there exists no mechanism to accomplish this. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010141</u> contained another CR to 22.127 on user interaction. In the current OSA stage 1 (22.127 Version 4.0.0) is unclear what kind of user interaction for CS CC needs to be considered. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

It was asked if this work could be made know to CN5. Jörg Swetina agreed to communicate this to CN5.

Document <u>S1-010135</u> contained a discussion document on OSA Terminal Capabilities. The present OSA function to access terminal capabilities is based on some notes in the WAP specifications. There it is stated that in the course of establishing a WAP session a terminal may transmit terminal capabilities via the WAP gateway to the WAP server. It was decided to address this at the joint VHE OSA meeting on 6th - 8th March.

Document <u>\$1-010176</u> contained a discussion document on service discovery for OSA Rel-5. It is not a change request, but does suggest some changes. It was noted and will be sent to the OSA ad hoc for consideration.

The next meeting of the OSA ad hoc will be from the 6th to 8th March.

1	\$1_010202	MeXE service discovery	Motorola	
	<u>31-010202</u>	MEXE SERVICE discovery	Motorola	

Document <u>\$1-010202</u> contained a CR to 22.057 on service discovery for MeXE; it was taken under this part of the agenda for consistency and since there was no MeXE item. Although MExE generically supports service discovery by "surfing" to websites and downloading applications from operators' and other parties servers, it is helpful to explicitly clarify this as a requirement.

It was agreed to be sent to SA #11 for approval if no comments by end of meeting. Since no comments were received, these CRs will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

7.5 CAMEL phase 4

<u>S1-010103</u>	Meeting Report of SA1 CAMEL Ad Hoc 30th Jan - 1st Feb 2001	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010119</u>	Enhancements to mobility management reporting	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010120</u>	Changing of naming for SMS-CSI	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010121</u>	Corrections of Call Barring interaction for CSE created call / new	CAMEL ad hoc
	party	
<u>S1-010122</u>	Enhanced CSE capability for Subscribed Dialled Services	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010123</u>	Clarification on Call Party Handling requirements	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010124</u>	Provide Location Information in case a terminating call is alerted	CAMEL ad hoc
<u>S1-010125</u>	Transport of Charging Information from serving PLMN to the CSE	CAMEL ad hoc

Document <u>S1-010103</u> contained the report of the last meeting of the CAMEL ad hoc. It was noted as in section 6.1.

Document <u>\$1-010119</u> contained a CR to 22.078 on "enhancements to mobility management reporting". It was agreed, to be sent to \$A #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010120</u> contained a CR to 22.078 on changing of naming for SMS-CSI. The Stage 2 documents (23.008 and 23.078) are naming the CAMEL marks for SMS MO-SMS-CSI and MT-SMS-CSI. This CR is proposing to align with stage2. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010121</u> contained a CR to 22. 078 on corrections of Call Barring interaction for CSE created call/new party. The description of interworking of CSE created new party with Call Barring supplementary service and ODB is misleading and not in line with chapter 18.8. It was agreed to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010122</u> contained a CR to 22. 078 on enhanced CSE capability for Subscribed Dialled Services. There are IN services like Freephone, Premium Rate, Universal Access Number, that a mobile user would like to access from his home PLMN and also when he is roaming. These are the services that are already popular in his PSTN. The requirement is that a mobile user should be able to invoke the same set of IN services, preferably using the same dialling pattern as already prevalent in his PSTN. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010123</u> contained a CR to 22. 078 on clarification on Call Party Handling requirements to provide further clarification of the CPH operations. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>S1-010124</u> contained a CR to 22. 078 to provide Location Information in case a terminating call is alerted. When a terminating call is subject to CAMEL based services, the location of the called subscriber is given at the initial contact from the network to the CSE. For some service this location information might be not sufficient and precise enough. It is proposed to add the location information to the procedure where the called subscriber is alerted. At this time the subscriber is paged and the location information is very accurate. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Document <u>\$1-010125</u> contained a CR to 22. 078 on transport of Charging Information from serving PLMN to the CSE. This document proposes to enable the CSE to request charging notifications from the serving MSC in case of Mobile Terminated calls. The phrase 'request charging notifications' has been changed to 'send charging notifications' for Mobile Originated and Mobile Forwarded calls. It was agreed, to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

7.6 Facsimile

Non input was received on Facsimile enhancements.

7.7 Technical Enhancements and Improvements (TEI)

<u>S1-010069</u>	Predictive Text Input	France Telecom
<u>\$1-010070</u>	Predictive Text Input	France Telecom
<u>S1-010158</u>	Work Item Description for the Predictive Text Input feature	France Telecom

Quite a bit of discussion has occurred on the subject of predictive Text input over the email exploder. This was partially caused by two inputs in documents <u>S1-010069</u> and <u>S1-010070</u> which contain proposed CRs to 22.101 for release 4 and release 5.

The "predictive text input" feature is now available on most of the UEs but this feature works only for the SMS application. It would be useful and would allow a consistency to have it for other applications like SIM Toolkit, WAP, etc.. Moreover, it would be useful to turn this feature on and off according to the situation it is being used in.

A proposed work item description was provided in \$1-010158.

It was commented that this feature is related to MMI and should be left to operator implementation. This was stated by many manufacturers with tedious repetition. Traditionally, the services group does not specify the MMI over and above what is specified in 22.030.

The documents were withdrawn.

<u>S1-010071</u>	Handling of interactions between applications requiring the	France Telecom
	access to UE resources	
<u>S1-010072</u>	Handling of interactions between applications requiring the	France Telecom

access to UE resources

Two CRs were presented in documents <u>S1-010071</u> and <u>S1-010072</u> on handling of interactions between applications requiring the access to UE resources. Currently WAP sessions and SIM toolkit services are not programmed to run simultaneously in a UE. In other words, no rules have been defined to resolve contentions for the access to the handset resources such as display and keypad. The objective of this proposal is to define a user controlled mechanism to grant access to the UE resources to the applications running simultaneously.

These CRs relate to a release 99 CR that was approved at SA #10.

For Rel-5, further work is expected to enrich the proposed procedure. This will be done in accordance with T2 work on Terminal Local Model, but for the purposes of consistency, it was decided to approve CRs to both Rel-4 and Rel-5.

It was agreed to send both documents to SA #11 for approval.

S1-010148 User controlled PLMN list Vodafone

Document <u>S1-010148</u> contained a CR to 22.011 on a user controlled PLMN list. The change is being proposed to remove the stated prohibition of being able to update the User PLMN List over the air.

The change is proposed because:

- 1) This restriction on OTA update is not necessary. Operators own the SIM cards and set the fields on the SIM cards. Optional fields like User PLMN List and Network PLMN List do not have to be present on the SIM card and so an operator can issue SIM cards with just the Network PLMN list or no list at all.
- 2) Ease of use at present, to enjoy subcriber requested services from their home operator, they must remember to leave the 'user network selection' field empty.
- 3) Operators want to be able to offer preferential tariff on the basis of PLMN selection which means the consumer has to remember to keep the User PLMN List empty to benefit from such tariffs.
- 4) Operators will be able to offer services to users to remotely update this file.
- Operators will be able to offer customer care for those customers who do not understand the User PLMN List.

There was a comment that there have been serious discussions in SA regarding the selection lists. It was requested, therefore, that the decision to do this be taken very carefully. This is not to be confused with the switching between the user-controlled and network controlled PLMN section lists.

It was commented that this could be a regulatory issue and should be maintained. It was suggested though, that it is not for the technology to police a regulatory issue.

Since there was no clear resolution in SA1 and so the default situation is to leave the text alone. With this in mind, the CR was rejected.

S1-010195 Barring of MT SMS Service Requirements One 2 One

Document <u>S1-010195</u> contained a discussion document that observes that recently some networks started to charge roaming customers for mobile terminating SMS. This is unfair to the user who does not have the possibility of blocking the reception of SMS.

It is felt beneficial to introduce a service requirement for a new supplementary service aimed to completely block, or filter the incoming SMS while roaming.

It should be noted that it is common practice to notify the user of a voice message waiting by sending an SMS, as well as sending advice of charge, thus it is desirable to have a mechanism that allows a certain level of flexibility in the barring.

It was noted and delegates were requested to contact the author.

S1-010251 Editorial CR to 22.129 for Rel4	Orange
---	--------

Document <u>S1-010251</u> contained a CR to 22.129, which were mainly editorial in nature. It was agreed to send it to SA #11 for approval.

7.8 Service Provider Name

	Response to LS "Enhancement of CPHS Network Operator Name Feature for 3G R4"	N1
S1-010146	Operator PLMN List Overview	SBC

Document <u>S1-010030</u> contained a response to the liaison statement from T3 on Enhancement of CPHS Network Operator Name Feature for 3G. TSG CN1 has discussed the LS and gave some answers. It was noted, pending discussion on Service Provider Name and PLMN name.

Document <u>S1-010146</u> contained a reference document on the PLMN list display. A liaison statement along with change requests has been received by TSG SA1 from TSG T3 regarding proposed changes to the Operator PLMN list. This contribution provides an overview of the proposed changes to promote understanding within SA1.

S1-010076 Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
S1-010077 Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
S1-010209 Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
S1-010210 Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
S1-010209 Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
S1-010210 Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One

Document <u>S1-010076</u> contained a CR to 22.101 (Rel-4) to clarify the service requirement on the service provider name display in the terminal. A new procedure is described in order to display the desired information on the terminal about the provider of the communication service. When in the home network the name of the service provider is shown on the terminal, when roaming, the name of the visited network is shown.

Document <u>\$1-010077</u> contained an equivalent CR for Rel-5.

It was commented that whilst this feature would appear to be appropriate for the user, it would require extra storage space in the Mobile and extra software. There are also some concerns over whether this can be abused. However it was also felt that these issues could be satisfactorily resolved, and proposals were made for refining the CRs.

Revisions of the CRs were provided in <u>\$1-010209</u> and <u>\$1-010210</u> taking into account the comments of the meeting. It was agreed to send the CRs to \$A #11 for approval with the word "optionally" after the "and/or".

S1-010147	LS on Introduction of Operator PLMN Name List for 3G Release	SBC
	4	
S1-010211	LS on Introduction of Operator PLMN Name List for 3G Release	SBC
	4	

Document <u>\$1-010147</u> contained a proposed response to T3 from \$A1. It was decided to revise this to add some more explanatory text in the document. The revision was provided in <u>\$1-010211</u>, which was approved.

Service Requirements for the flexible display of the Operator Name were discussed, and it was agreed that requirements exist to:

- 1. Display a single Operator Name as a function of multiple network codes,
- 2. Display different Operator Names as a function of different Mobile Network Codes,
- 3. Enable application of both the above while the subscriber is in either the home PLMN or roaming.

It was requested to have an email list. This will be done.

7.9 GPRS (22.060) New WI

There was no input on GPRS at this meeting under this agenda item.

7.10 ODB for Packet Services (New WI)

\$1-010018	Work Item Description for Release 4: ODB (Operator	NEC
<u>01010010</u>	Determined Barring) for Packet Oriented Services	1420
<u>S1-010019</u>	Corrections of the ODB categories for Packet Oriented Services	NEC
<u>S1-010036</u>	Remove ODB for Packet Oriented Services from Release 99	NEC
<u>\$1-010037</u>	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
<u>\$1-010203</u>	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
<u>\$1-010204</u>	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
<u>\$1-010205</u>	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC

Document <u>S1-010018</u> contained a proposed WI for ODB (Operator Determined Barring) for Packet Oriented Services. It is being passed to SA1 for information as it is being proposed to have SA2 as the lead group. Essentially, the WI intends to apply ODB to packet services. The document was noted.

A proposed CR to 22.041 in order to implement the changes related for SA1 was provided in <u>S1-010019</u>. The current ODB barring categories for Packet Oriented Services has conflicts with the description in GPRS stage 2. It was agreed, to send this to SA #11 for approval

Document <u>S1-010036</u> also contained a CR 22.041 (R99) to remove ODB for Packet Oriented Services from Release 99. It was agreed, to send this to SA #11 for approval.

Finally, document <u>S1-010037</u> contained a CR to 22.078 (Rel-4) to introduce a new subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services.

The problem with this is that the version 4 of 22.078 and the version 3 are intended to be the same and relate to CAMEL phase3. CAMEL phase 4 only exists in release 5. By having this change to version 4 means that we create a CAMEL phase 3½.

It was decided to have the same text in release 99 and release 4 with a note to explain the problem, and a release 5 as a shadow specification.

It was agreed to send the CRs in \$\frac{\S1-010203}{0.100003}, \frac{\S1-010204}{0.100005} and \frac{\S1-010205}{0.100005} to SA #11 for approval.

The CRs were also provided in documents <u>S1-010213</u>, <u>S1-010214</u> and <u>S1-010215</u>. These numbers were originally allocated for the CRs, but they were erroneously provided in <u>S1-010203</u>, <u>S1-010204</u> and <u>S1-010205</u> and rather than change the documents used, it was decided to use <u>S1-010203</u>, <u>S1-010204</u> and <u>S1-010205</u>. The CRs were provided in documents S1-010213, S1-010214 and S1-010215 were withdrawn.

7.11 CPHS (New WI)

S1-010049 Introduction of Operator PLMN Name List for 3G Rel-4	T3	
--	----	--

Document <u>\$1-010049</u> contained an introduction of Operator PLMN Name List for 3G Rel-4. Currently the PLMN name is read from the ME's own internal list (based upon GSMA PRD SE.13) and is displayed when the subscriber is registered on a PLMN. The attached CR, T3-010102, as part of the introduction of the CPHS features, introduces the ability for a network operator to define a USIM file that contains a name to be displayed when on the HPLMN. The benefit of having this information on the USIM is that it is provided by the network operator and its contents can therefore be modified as and when required. This was noted, pending the discussions regarding the CPHS features for Rel-4 (see S1-010177 below).

S1-010020 Introduction of features from the	ne CPHS for 3G Rel-4	T2
S1-010048 Introduction of features from the	ne CPHS for 3G Rel-4	T3

Document <u>\$1-010020</u> contained a liaison statement from T2 to T3 on CPHS. T2 has reviewed the liaison statement and has no immediate concerns with the discussion, however concerning the Voice Mail section T2 are seeking some clarification. Therefore, T2 is asking \$1 for confirmation that T2's interpretation is acceptable to \$A1.

Document S1-01048 answers the questions of T2 in <u>S1-010048</u>. Since, SA1 has no concerns over this, the changes are endorsed.

S1-010073 Notification of active CFU	One 2 One	
<u> </u>	J = J	

Document <u>S1-010073</u> contained a CR to 22.082 to add a feature for alignment with new functionality defined in T3. When the UE is in idle mode, an indication on the status of CFU is provided to the user. The feature is already implemented in Rel-4 in the context of the CPHS work item and this CR introduces the corresponding service requirement.

It was commented that, back in the annals of time, there was a signal defined as part of call set-up to indicate that CFU is set and it was asked how this relates to this functionality. It was answered that this change allows for the status of Call Forwarding to be stored in the USIM. It does not involve the network.

<u>S1-010177</u>	LS to T3 on Introduction of CPHS features	Orange
<u>S1-010178</u>	CR to 22.101 on Introduction of CPHS features	Orange
S1-010179	CR to 22.101 on Introduction of CPHS features	Orange

In the last meeting, SA1 received a liaison statement from T3 (S1-000820, T3-000627) regarding three features that were part of the CPHS specification. Document <u>S1-010177</u> provides a response to this liaison statement. In it, S1 is supporting the inclusion of the CPHS features in 3GPP R4 and has reviewed the service requirements for the proposed features.

The CRs to implement the features in SA1 specifications were provided in <u>S1-010178</u> (Rel-4) and <u>S1-010179</u> (Rel-5).

The liaison statement was approved subject to the no comments being received on the CRs by the end of the meeting. Since no comments were received, these CRs will be forwarded to SA #11 for approval.

S1-010074 PLMN name indication	One 2 One
S1-010075 PLMN name indication	One 2 One
S1-010207 PLMN name indication	One 2 One
S1-010208 PLMN name indication	One 2 One

Document <u>S1-010074</u> contained a CR to 22.101 to specify the alternative sources for the PLMN name resulting from the liaison statement in <u>S1-010177</u>. The Public Land Mobile Network name is currently derived either by the UE list or, if the terminal and the network implement the feature, using the broadcast channel according to 22.042. In this CR it is proposed to allow the PLMN name to be read from the USIM.

There was a comment regarding the second bullet. The first point was that it should be more related to the NITZ specification 22.042 and that the order of priority may not be appropriate. With the USIM taking precedence over the broadcast name or ME stored name.

An equivalent CR was provided for Rel-5 in $\underline{\text{S1-010075}}$. Based on the comments, both $\underline{\text{S1-010074}}$ and $\underline{\text{S1-010208}}$. It was agreed to send the CRs to SA #11 for approval.

<u>\$1-010078</u>	Message Waiting Indication persistency	One 2 One
<u>\$1-010079</u>	Message Waiting Indication persistency	One 2 One

Documents <u>S1-010078</u> and <u>S1-010079</u> were withdrawn.

8 Work Items (Other Groups)

8.1 Location Services enhancements

<u>S1-010040</u>	Provision of Open Interfaces within the GERAN & UMTS for LCS	S2
	Support	
<u>S1-010068</u>	Report from SA LCS Workshop, London, 11-12 January 2001	Qualcomm Europe SARL
<u>S1-010099</u>	Withdrawing the SA Work Item on open LCS interfaces	SA2

Document <u>S1-010040</u> contained a liaison statement on the Provision of Open Interfaces within the GERAN & UMTS for LCS Support. It resulted in a workshop, which was held on 11-12 January 2001 reported in <u>S1-010068</u>.

Document <u>\$1-010068</u> contained a report from the SA LCS Workshop, London. The result of the LCS Workshop was:

- ?? A proposal will be made to TSG-SA to withdraw the work item agreed in TSG-SA#10 in SP-000685 on open interfaces.
- ?? A proposal will be made to TSG RAN to endorse the new work item as described in Tdoc 23. This new WI covers R4.
- ?? The workshop recommends to GERAN that Iu mode should follow the same principle as UTRAN, but take into consideration that the final decision will be made in GERAN.

The document was noted.

Support for this conclusion was provided in \$1-010099 containing a liaison statement from \$A2. It was noted.

<u>\$1-010012</u> I	Editorial Cleanup	SBC
<u>S1-010164</u> I	LCS future developments	Nokia
<u>S1-010218</u> I	Editorial Cleanup	SBC/Nokia
<u>S1-010235</u>	Quality level negation	Nokia
<u>S1-010236</u> I	Identification of a Target MS for LCS	Nokia
<u>S1-010237</u>	OSA support for LCS	Nokia
<u>S1-010238</u>	Clarification on Defined geographical areas	Nokia
<u>S1-010239</u> I	Location determination in call or PDP context activation and	Nokia
	release	

Document <u>S1-010012</u> contained a clean-up CR to 22.071. It would appear that the description of the velocity parameter has been deleted. This is not the case, however, as it occurs elsewhere in the document.

Document $\underline{\text{S1-010164}}$ contained numerous proposals for changes, including additional editorial improvements to those provided in $\underline{\text{S1-010012}}$.

It was suggested that the two authors get together to discuss the CR. The purely editorial aspects should be put into one CR, and the other elements need to be put into one or more CRs to 22.071.

The revision of <u>S1-010012</u> was provided in <u>S1-010218</u>. The CR in <u>S1-010218</u> was agreed to be sent to SA #11 for approval.

Documents <u>S1-010235</u>, <u>S1-010236</u>, <u>S1-010237</u>, <u>S1-010238</u>, <u>S1-010239</u> contained CRs related to the proposal to split up the work identified in <u>S1-010164</u> into separate CRs.

On <u>S1-010236</u>, it was questioned whether it is necessary to have a reference to IP addressing in the Rel-4 specification. The CR was rejected.

There was a proposal to delete clause 9.2.2, Location identification in UTRAN and/or UE. This chapter actually describes a new events triggering location service request when a call is established or closed and the similar functionality for the GPRS sessions. This is however not very clearly described in current text and thus a

clarification is proposed or deletion altogether. This was not agreed, but rather a counter proposal was to accept the text in <u>\$1-010164</u>. It was provided in \$1-010239.

It was stated that the comments to 9.2.4 and 9.2.5 in <u>S1-010164</u> are in conflict with the views of the ad hoc meeting of LCS. It was answered that this is known, but that some discussion is required in SA1 plenary on this issue. On <u>S1-010238</u>, it was questioned whether it is necessary to put change the text and imply that DEGA is still a requirement whereas it has been deleted from the workplan. The CR was rejected, but could be replaced with CR to delete the whole section. In the event, it was decided to keep the text as it is.

On 9.2.8, it was commented that the last sentence is not correct and should be deleted. It is sufficient to state that LCS shall support VHE. It was provided in S1-010237.

Documents S1-010235 contained a CR to delete the text about further QoS requirements.

It was agreed to send <u>S1-010235</u>, <u>S1-010237</u> and <u>S1-010239</u> to SA #11 for approval.

S1-010035 LS on Maximum size of LCS clients	N4
S1-010219 LS on Maximum size of LCS clients	Vodafone

Document <u>S1-010035</u> contained a liaison statement from CN4 on the maximum size of LCS clients. CN4 has discussed the matter of maximum numbers of LCS clients and indicates that there are protocol limitations (mainly segmentation of the messages) that have to be considered when the maximum number of LCS clients is defined. CN4 has been notified of the proposal made by NTT DoCoMo on SA1 mailing list (maximum number shall be 40) and CN4 agreed to use this maximum number as working assumption pending on the SA 1 approval of this service requirement.

The TS 29.002 mandates the use of White Book SCCP from 1st of July 2002 and 40 clients can be transferred with MAP protocol only if the White Book SCCP is used. If the Blue Book SCCP is used, only 5 clients can be transferred without specifying protocol level segmentation, which is not recommended by CN4. Hence, the recommendation of CN4 is that the maximum number of LCS clients is 40 and the segmentation problems are solved by using White Book SCCP.

There was a comment that perhaps 40 are not sufficient. In this case, to state a limit in the standard would be a little premature. The upper bound set in this instance is a matter of the signalling limitation, which is not really a way forward. Historically, the services would state a minimum rather than a maximum. The question is if there is a service requirement for more than 40?

The consensus of the group was documented in a liaison statement provided in S1-010219 that indicated:

- 1. SA1 would not like to translate a technology limitation into a service requirement.
- 2. SA1 accept that it is useful to specify a **minimum** value to the number of LCS clients and derive the lower bound as follows:
 - ? ? There are 16 service sub-categories in Annex B of TS 22.071.
 - ? If we assume that a user may which to access at least one application in each service sub-category this gives a **minimum** bound of 16 LCS clients.
 - ? ? Some categories would clearly require more than one LCS client e.g. Location Dependent Content Broadcast and so we suggest a minimum value of 20 LCS clients.
- 3. SA1 do not wish to set any maximum value on the number of LCS clients.
- SA1 believe that if the commercial imperatives exist the technical limitations can be overcome.

The document was presented in <u>\$1-010219</u>. It was approved.

S1-010095 LS Response to LCS Privacy Exception List changes	SA2	
---	-----	--

Document <u>S1-010095</u> contained a liaison statement from SA1 on LCS Privacy Exception List changes in response to the SA1 LS in S1-000800. SA2 has discussed on the enhancement of LCS Privacy Exception List within Release 4, and it has been incorporated to LCS Stage2 document based on the S1's changes. Therefore, the CR to TS22.071 included in LS from S1 is feasible within Release 4. It was noted.

<u>S1-010096</u>	Enhancement of LCS functionality in Rel-4	SA2
<u>S1-010155</u>	Response to LS on Enhancement of LCS functionality in Rel-4	NTT DoCoMo

Document <u>\$1-010096</u> contained a liaison statement on enhancement of LCS functionality in Rel-4. SA2 indicate that the work can be done, but that a variety of solutions are possible, some of which are very complex. SA2 is leaning towards a more optimal solution with higher complexity but greater signalling efficiency. However, SA2 might endorse a simpler solution with lower signalling efficiency since the greater signalling would only be invoked rarely.

SA2 is studying but has not yet approved the proposal and the relevant text has been included in the informative ANNEX of 23.271. Since the feature is targeted to release 4, SA2 is asking CN4 to proceed with their work based on the description in the Annex of 23.271. Any CRs to the CN stage 3 associated with these solutions will be presented for information to CN4 and not for approval until a solution has been approved in SA2.

A proposed response was provided in document <u>\$1-010155</u>. \$1 believes it is a very important function that a LCS server detects a target MS's position as soon as it becomes reachable. For some LCS server which always want to know a target MS's position in real-time (e.g. tracking service for vehicles), it needs to retry making the positioning attempts quite frequently after the positioning attempt has failed. Furthermore, it is also very important to alert to LCS Clients as soon as it becomes reachable, since an LCS server positioned quite frequently could be very likely to fail when once one failure has occurred. This function helps to reduce a lot of useless attempts.

S1 also believes this situation will happen quiet frequently. For instance, the target MS is in an underground, inside of some buildings, out of the coverage and so on. In order to cope with this problem, this function should be necessary for the earliest release. Therefore, S1 strongly requests to support this requirement for Rel-04 and to proceed with the work based on the description in the Annex of TS23.271 as the solution of this requirement.

This liaison statement was approved and will be sent out.

8.2 Multimedia Messaging

S1-010013	MMS stage 1	T2
<u>\$1-010014</u>	MM Forwarding	T2
<u>S1-010015</u>	New features in MMS R'4	T2
<u>S1-010016</u>	Support for Streaming in MMS	T2

Document <u>\$1-010013</u> contained a liaison statement to accompany three CRs to 22.140 on three subjects:

<u>\$1-010015</u> (T2-000774) (New features in MMS R'4):

The recent working assumption in T2 for MMS stage 2, 23.140 and in the WAP Forum (which defines an implementation/stage 3 of MMS) support features of MMS that are not yet covered in the MMS stage 1, 22.140. This CR identifies these features and proposes to align MMS stage 1.

It was agreed to send the CR in \$\frac{\text{S1-010015}}{\text{to}}\$ to SA #11 for approval

S1-010014 (T2-000775) (MM forwarding):

A clear need was identified by T2 for that MMS shall be able to support a request to forward multimedia messages or multimedia message elements without having to first download the MM to the terminal and that this feature needs standardisation. This change allows the feature to be standardised.

It was agreed to send the CR in \$\frac{\text{S1-010014}}{\text{to SA #11}}\$ for approval

S1-010016 (T2-000776) (Support for Streaming in MMS):

The present SA4 work on streaming for R'4 is limited to downlink streaming (with a terminal as a streaming client). Uplink streaming (terminal originating the stream) has not been considered so far. This CR is to reflect the restriction to downlink streaming only in the requirements for MMS which aligns MMS stage 1 with SA4's current working assumption.

It was agreed to send the CR in \$\frac{\text{S1-010016}}{\text{to SA}}\$ to SA #11 for approval

<u>S1-010022</u>	Support for prepaid in MMS	T2
<u>S1-010220</u>	Reponse to LS on Support for prepaid in MMS	SA1
S1-010244	Reponse to LS on Support for prepaid in MMS	SA1

Document <u>S1-010022</u> contained a liaison statement on prepaid MMS. At the last TSG-T2 meeting it was identified that Multimedia Messaging should support prepaid billing. With prepay there is a need to prevent a subscriber using MMS when their credit has gone below a certain limit. This requires a mechanism for real-time credit checking.

Ideally, specific mechanisms need to be devised that will allow the specific features of MMS to be charged to prepay customers. For example, this would mean that an approval procedure is needed which allows the MMS to decide on a per message basis whether to provide the service to a prepaid customer or not.

It was suggested that the mechanism to work with MMS should be generic and allow for other services and features.

The liaison statement was noted, and passed to Michele Palermo, the rapporteur, for consideration. There is some capability for pre-paid already provided in 22.1125. Also, the rapporteur for 22.127 indicated that there will be some support for this in OSA, but in Rel-5.

A proposed response was provided in document <u>\$1-010220</u>. This was revised to <u>\$1-010244</u>.

It was noted that the work required for release 4 is ambitious. This was acceptable, since the feature is important, and the liaison statement in <u>\$1-010244</u> was approved.

S1-010197	Packet-switched Streaming Services (PSS); General	Vodafone
	Description	

Document <u>S1-010197</u> contained a stage 2 for Packet-switched Streaming Services (PSS). This was presented to SA1 to stimulate some discussion on the fact that we have a stage 2 without a stage 1, and a question as to whether SA1 is in favour of this. In the absence of any requirements, SA4 will assume this will be a bit-pipe only.

If any delegates wish to comment, they should contact Mr Stephan Wolak.

8.3 Global Text telephony

There was no input on GTT.

8.4 Emergency call enhancements

There was no input on Emergency call enhancements.

8.5 CS multimedia services

There was no input on CS multimedia services.

8.6 UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming

Г	\$1-010067	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	Qualcomm Europe
	<u>01010007</u>	own of Com Annother Interstandard Todining	SARL, Lucent
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
			Technologies

<u>\$1-010161</u>	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	Qualcomm Europe SARL, Lucent
		Technologies
S1-010222	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	Qualcomm

Document <u>S1-010067</u> was replaced by document <u>S1-010161</u>, which dealt with the issue of inter-standard roaming between UMTS and ANSI-41 core networks. This was discussed in the third meeting of SA1 in March 1999 [1], [2]. The work item was agreed although it is not included in the current 3GPP work plan.

In the summer of 1999 in response to an OHG requirement for inter-standard roaming, workshops were held by 3GPP and 3GPP2 [3], [4] to identify hooks and extensions in the radio access network signalling protocols. 3GPP TSG-T WG3 and ETSI SCP have done work to support multi-mode SIM cards for operation in GSM, TDMA, and CDMA networks.

3GPP TSG-SA WG3 and TSG-CN have been working on positive authentication reporting for subscribers who roam from 3GPP2 networks to 3GPP networks. At the TSG-SA plenary in Bangkok, a liaison statement from TSG-CN requesting broader work item for the feature "Inter-system roaming between 3GPP and 3GPP2" was presented [5]. The authors of this contribution support TSG-CN in that request.

SA1 is asked to take the following action:

- ?? To agree the work-item on inter-standard roaming between UMTS/GSM and ANSI-41 core networks (annex B of this contribution) and ask TSG-SA to include it as a feature in the 3GPP workplan.
- ?? To adopt the terminology used by GAIT as seen in Annex A of this contribution.
- ?? To ask TSG-SA to establish a workshop, open to delegates of 3GPP, 3GPP2, TR45, CDG, GAIT, and GGRF to define service requirements and identify further work for 3GPP for the accomplishment of interstandard roaming between UMTS and ANSI-41.

A number of companies indicated that they would support this WI. There was some concern regarding the terminology as given in annex A, and if that conflicts with the terminology already used in 3G. It was decided to forward the WI to SA for approval. The extracted WI was provided in document <u>\$1-010222\$</u>.

Document S1-010222 was approved and will be sent to SA #11 for approval.

8.7 Support of Push Services

ľ	<u>\$1-010092</u>	Liaison Statement about Push Services Work Item	SA2
		Proposed change to WI: A feasibility study of an architecture for Push Service	SA2
		TS 23.874 Version 1.3.0 (Feasibility study of architecture for push	SA2
	S1-010091	Work Status of "Support of push service"	WI rapporteur (NTT Comware)

Document <u>S1-010092</u> contained a liaison statement from SA2 on the status of the Push Service feasibility study (TR 23.874). The feasibility study is about to be finalised, however, TSG-SA2 has noticed the absence of the sufficient service requirements to finish the feasibility study. Thus, TSG-SA2 is asking TSG-SA1 to provide a basic set of requirements for the push service. This would allow timely completion of the work identified.

A proposed change to WI "A feasibility study of an architecture for Push Service" was provided in document S1-01093. This document has been approved at SA #10, although there are some areas that need work, in particular the services area. It was noted.

Document <u>\$1-010094</u> was noted as background information.

Document S1-010091 contained a presentation on the status of push services. This presentation implies that we have a great deal of work to do on this subject. Delegates were asked to consider the content of the presentation. It was noted.

<u>S1-010157</u>	proposed response on Liaison Statement about Push Services	NTT DoCoMo
	Work Item	
<u>\$1-010089</u>	High Level Push Service Requirements	Motorola, Et Al
<u>S1-010229</u>	High Level Push Service Requirements	SA1
<u>S1-010255</u>	Statement on guidance for GPRS based PUSH services	NTT DoCoMo
	implementation	

A response to the liaison statement from SA2 was provided in document <u>S1-010157</u>. There was a concern on this response, which may be highlighted by document <u>S1-010089</u> contained a discussion document on High Level Push Service Requirements.

TSG-SA1 has been requested by TSG-SA2 to provide a basic set of requirements for the Push service. Since that request, the TSG-SA2 Push Service Drafting Session has worked on the Push service and architecture requirements and proposed a list of high-level requirements.

The sources of the document are asking TSG-SA1 to consider and evaluate the list of high-level requirements, and define a list of the Push service requirements, so that TSG-SA2 can finalise its Push services work in a timely manner for the TSG-SA2 Push Service Ad Hoc Group.

There were a number of comments, which indicated that the work on this has only just started. The items in <u>S1-010089</u> are very high level and the document is not in a shape to allow an architecture group to start work.

The two documents <u>S1-010157</u> and <u>S1-010089</u> are not the same, but may be complementary. This won't be known until they are reviewed. It would appear that the NTT DoCoMo was going a little further by including GPRS PUSH services. Hence, document <u>S1-010229</u> was produced to show how the documents could be merged.

Subsequently, document <u>\$1-010256</u> was produced to show only the general requirements and <u>\$1-010255</u> was produced to show only specific requirements.

There was some thought as to what to do with these documents. It is clear that we should not be pushed by SA2 but rather "pull" them.

For <u>\$1-010255</u> was controversial regarding the requirements related to GPRS. The meeting did not achieve unanimous support. The document reflected the support of the majority of the group, but there were some concerns raised regarding the implementations.

The revised version was provided in <u>S1-010259</u>. The liaison statement was not supported unanimously, but was approved while noting the reservation of Ericsson and Nokia.

In the meantime, <u>S1-010256</u> contained information that could be agreed. It was revised and provided in <u>S1-010260</u>. This liaison statement was approved.

<u>S1-010127</u>	Proposed Work Item description	Ericsson L.M.
S1-010128	Service aspects; Stage 1 Push Service (3G TS 22.xxx Release	Ericsson L.M.
	5)	

Another WI proposal was provided in document <u>S1-010127</u>. This prompted the concern that timing is imperative. This was addressed by the chairman, who indicated that it is all very well that SA2 to work on something without a service requirement, but they cannot expect SA1 to a write a service requirement urgently and in a rush. There is clearly no consensus on this item at this time, which indicates that a service is required and it should be done properly.

A proposal for a stage 1 was provided in <u>S1-010128</u>. This may not be appropriate; it may be better to put the requirements for this into an existing specification, although which one is not clear.

It was decided to merge the requirements in documents <u>\$1-010157</u> and <u>\$1-010089</u> as a basis for a liaison statement back to \$A2 indicating that this is work in progress, but it is a start.

9 Any Other Business

9.1 Wideband AMR

	S1-010227 Discussion on Wideband AMR	Siemens
- 1		0.0

Document <u>S1-010227</u> contained a discussion document on wideband AMR. While it seems, that most of the work to get W-AMR up and running in Release 5 needs to be done in other groups, the additional requirements for the usage of W-AMR (as compared to AMR) should be analysed and included in the relevant stage 1 specifications.

S1 is invited to endorse this proposal. It should also be considered, whether a new workitem is needed. The work has been essentially completed, although some of the interworking needs to be clarified.

It was indicated that the work is underway in the other groups.

In the meantime, the document was endorsed, and interested parties should contact Joerg Swetina. (May be mentioned in status report to SA #11.)

9.2 Presence detection

Ī	S1-010228 Support of presence capability	Motorola, et al
ı	S1-010220 Support of presence capability	iviolordia, et ai

Document <u>S1-010228</u> contained a proposal for a work item related to the concept of presence, whereby users make themselves "visible" or not "visible" to other parties of their choice, allowing services such as group and private "chats" to take place. Presence is an attribute related to mobility information, and provides a different capability to be exploited by other services. The concept of presence, once supported, will enable other multimedia services to exploit this key enabler to support other advanced multimedia services and communications.

Examples of multimedia services that could potentially exploit the presence capability include "chat", e-mail, multimedia messaging, instant messaging etc..

It was endorsed by SA1 and will be presented to SA #11 for approval with the additional support of Ericsson.

9.1 3G Vocabulary (21.905)

S1-010005 LS on TR 21.905: Vocabulary for 3GPP Specifications	TSG T1
S1-010080 Editorial changes and new definitions	One 2 One
\$1-010180 Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	One2one
S1-010181 Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	One2one
S1-010233 Editorial changes and new definitions	One 2 One
S1-010234 Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	One2one

Document <u>S1-010005</u> contained a liaison statement from T1 which has been included in document <u>S1-010080</u>. It was agreed sent to SA #11 for approval if no comments by end of meeting. Since no comments were received it was sent.

Document <u>S1-010180</u> contained a CR to 21.905 to include commonly used definition contained in 23.122. It was agreed sent to SA #11 for approval if no comments by end of meeting. It was revised to <u>S1-010233</u> to make the CR a little briefer.

Document S1-010181 was not required and was withdrawn.

Document S1-010233 and S1-010234 will sent to SA #11 for approval.

10 Administration

<u>S1-010066</u>	Release 4 specification set from Release 99	MCC
<u>\$1-010004</u>	List of rapporteurs	MCC

Document <u>S1-010066</u> contained a document to define what Release 99 specifications will be upgraded to Release 4.

Nokia believe that HSCSD (22.034) is applicable for both GSM and 3G. Siemens believe that Follow-Me is a 3G service. Also 2 reports 22.971, "Automatic establishment of roaming relationships" and 22.975 "Advanced addressing" were deleted for Rel-4.

Document <u>\$1-010066</u> was revised on line and provided in <u>\$1-010258</u>. It was further revised and provided in document \$1-010262.

Document <u>S1-010004</u> contained a list of rapporteurs that was provided for information and update. The secretary asked that comments be provided to him for updating. It will be provided in document S1-010263 after the meeting.

10.1 Election of SA1 Chairman

An election for the chairmanship of TSG SA WG1 was held during the meeting. The two candidates were Randolph Wohlert and Kevin Holley. The outgoing chairman of SA1 congratulated Mr Kevin Holley of BT as the chairman elect.

11 Approval of Outputs and Liaisons

Change Requests

Rele ase	Spec No.	Doc. No.	Title	То
R98	02.11	130	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '98)	SP-11
R97	02.11	225	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	SP-11
Rel-4	02.11	245	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	SP-11
R98	02.71	88	Deletion of reference to GSM 10.71	SP-11
Rel-4	21.905	233	Editorial changes and new definitions	SP-11
Rel-4	21.905	234	Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	SP-11
Rel-4	22.002	253	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	Email
R99	22.002	252	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	Email
Rel-4	22.002	254	Restructuring of 22.002	Email
R99	22.011	131	CR to 22.011 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '99)	SP-11
Rel-4	22.038	196	Indication of Key Identification	T3
Rel-5	22.038	240	Indication of Key Identification	T3

R99	22.041	173	CR on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	SP-11
R99	22.041	36	Remove ODB for Packet Oriented Services from Release 99	SP-11
Rel-4	22.041	174	CR on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	SP-11
Rel-4	22.041	19	Corrections of the ODB categories for Packet Oriented Services	SP-11
Rel-5	22.057	202	MeXE service discovery	SP-11
Rel-4	22.071	237	OSA support for LCS	SP-11
Rel-4	22.071	218	Editorial Cleanup	SP-11
Rel-4	22.071	239	Location determination in call or PDP context activation and release	SP-11
Rel-4	22.071	235	Quality level negation	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	125	Transport of Charging Information from serving PLMN to the CSE	SP-11
R99	22.078	104	Remedy for incorrect implementation of CR 22.078-062r5	SP-11
Rel-4	22.078	114	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	124	Provide Location Information in case a terminating call is alerted	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	123	Clarification on Call Party Handling requirements	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	122	Enhanced CSE capability for Subscribed Dialled Services	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	121	Corrections of Call Barring interaction for CSE created call / new party	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	120	Changing of naming for SMS-CSI	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	118	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-/MT-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	SP-11
Rel-4	22.078	117	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	SP-11
R99	22.078	116	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	119	Enhancements to mobility management reporting	SP-11
Rel-4	22.078	204	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	106	Alignment with stage 2 & 3, and some editorial corrections	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	242	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	SP-11
	22.078		Corrections of congestion control procedure	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	205	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	SP-11
Rel-4	22.078	105	Alignment with stage 2 & 3, and some editorial corrections	SP-11
R99	22.078	203	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	SP-11
R99	22.078	188	Corrections of congestion control procedure	SP-11
Rel-4	22.078	108	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	SP-11
Rel-5	22.078	115	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	SP-11
	22.078		Corrections of congestion control procedure	SP-11
R99	22.078		Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	SP-11
R99	22.078		Support of previous phases of CAMEL	SP-11
	22.082		Notification of active CFU	SP-11
	22.101		Handling of interactions between applications requiring the access to UE resources	SP-11
Rel-4	22.101	71	Handling of interactions between applications requiring	SP-11

			the access to UE resources	
Rel-5	22.101	179	CR to 22.101 on Introduction of CPHS features	SP-11
Rel-4	22.101	207	PLMN name indication	SP-11
Rel-5	22.101	208	PLMN name indication	SP-11
Rel-4	22.101	209	Display of service provider name in the UE	SP-11
Rel-5	22.101	210	Display of service provider name in the UE	SP-11
Rel-5	22.101	250	CR to 22.101 on Clarifications on IMS emergency call support	SP-11
Rel-4	22.101	178	CR to 22.101 on Introduction of CPHS features	SP-11
Rel-5	22.115	192	Introduction of charging for IPMultimedia and Event Based Charging	SP-11
Rel-4	22.121	85	Changes to TS 22.121 Release 4 - Update of 097 submitted to S1 Plenary	SP-11
Rel-5	22.121	169	The Virtual Home Environment (Release 5) Addition of User profile requirement and changes for clarification	SP-11
Rel-4	22.127	140	CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on CS Call Control (Release 4)	SP-11
Rel-4	22.127	141	CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on User interaction(Release 4)	SP-11
Rel-4	22.129	251	Editorial CR to correct references to releases	SP-11
Rel-4	22.140	14	MM Forwarding	SP-11
Rel-4	22.140	16	Support for Streaming in MMS	SP-11
Rel-4	22.140	15	New features in MMS R'4	SP-11
Rel-5	22.228	246	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	SP-11

Wls

Doc No	Title	То
222	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	SP-11
228	Support of presence capabilty	SP-11

Specs

Rel ase	Doc No	Title	То

Email of issues dealt with in meeting

Rel	Doc	Title	То
ease	No		
R99	252	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	Email
Rel-4	253	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	Email
Rel-4	254	Restructuring of 22.002	Email

Email of issues NOT dealt with in meeting

Rel	Doc	Title	То
ease	No		

Ad Hocs

Rel Doc Title	То
---------------	----

ease	No		
	10	Terminal Capabilities	VHE ad hoc
Rel-5	11	Liaison statement on IP Multimedia sessions	R5 ad hoc
	23	Terminal Capability Negotiation	VHE ad hoc
	135	Discussion document on OSA Terminal Capabilities	VHE/OSA ad hoc
	143	IMS Service Examples and Overall Requirements (Discussion document)	R5 ad hoc
Rel-5	175	Rel-5 VHE service discovery	VHE ad hoc
Rel-5	176	Rel-5 OSA service discovery	VHE ad hoc

Approved Liaison statements

Docu	Title	То	Сору
10	Terminal Capabilities	VHE ad hoc	
11	Liaison statement on IP Multimedia sessions	R5 ad hoc	
23	Terminal Capability Negotiation	VHE ad hoc	
82	LS to S2 on VHE to R4	SA2	
139	Proposed LS to T2 MMS: Additional feedback to Request for OSA Interface Information, (T2-000556)	T2 MMS	S2 VHE, TSG CN5
155	Response to LS on Enhancement of LCS functionality in Rel-	SA2	CN4
159	Reply to TIPHON on QoS	TIPHON, SA1, SA2, SA	
160	Reply to SA2 on eMLPP for PS Domain	SA2	
163	Reply on "Re-establish Capability for Emergency call" from SA1	N1	
166	LS on UE functionality split over physical devices	SA2, SA3, T2, TSG-T, T3, CN1, SA	
167	LS on TR 31.900 - SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking Aspects	T3	
168	LS on USAT interpreter stage 1	T3	
170	LS on PLMN Selection and Re-selection Issues	R2, UE idle Wksp	CN1, R4, SA, GERAN, GERAN WG1
171	Clarification on disconnecting Multiparty calls when a single call is active	CN WG4, GERAN-WG4	
177	LS to T3 on Introduction of CPHS features	SP-11	
183	LS giving clarification on interworking between IM domain and CS networks	CN3	SA, SA2, CN1
200	Indication of Key Identification	TSG-T WG3, TSG-SA WG3	
201	Proposed Reply LS to S2 (S2-002093) on clarification of VHE requirements (Update of 100 (LS to S2) submitted to S1 plenary)	SA WG2 (VHE-OSA Drafting group)	
219	LS on Maximum size of LCS clients	CN4	SA2
231	Periodic PLMN selection attempt	CN1	RAN2
241	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	CN2	
244	Reponse to LS on Support for prepaid in MMS	T2, CN2, SA5	
248	Response to LS "Control of IP multimedia services"	CN1, CN2, CN3, CN4, S2	CN5
249	Reponse to LS on IM Emergency Call without USIM		
259	Statement on guidance for GPRS based PUSH services implementation	SA2	

TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting Cape Town, SA 6th to 9th February 2001

260	Proposed response on LS about PUSH service work item	SA2	
	Requirement for End-to-end encryption of IP mulitmedia Subsystem controlled VOIP	SA3	

12 Future meetings

The meeting schedule, was reviewed in the meeting. Proposals for hosts would be gratefully received.

S1#12	7-11 May 2001	Helsinki, Finland, hosted by Sonera
S1#13	9-13 July 2001	North America, hosted by
S1#14	5-9 November 2001	Japan, hosted by NTT DoCoMo
R5 ad hoc	5-8 March 2001	Tempe, Arizona hosted by Motorola
VHE/OSA	5-8 March 2001	Tempe, Arizona hosted by Motorola

13 Closure of Meeting

The chairman thanked the delegates for their contributions to the meeting and for their hard work. He thanked the host, Vodacom, for all the facilities at the meeting.

ANNEX A - Table of documents

Doc. No.	Title	Source	Doc Pack
1	Report of TSG_SA_WG1#10 Meeting	MCC	
2	Draft Agenda for SA1 meeting #11	MCC	
3	Summary and Report from SA #10	MCC	
4	List of rapporteurs	MCC	
5	LS on TR 21.905: Vocabulary for 3GPP Specifications	TSG T1	
6	LS on Requirements for PLMN selection and reselection	SA #10	
7	Discussion document on UE functionality split over physical devices	TSG-T2	
	Convergence of QoS approaches in 3GPP and TIPHON	SA #10	
	Packet Switched Conversational Multimedia Applications; Default Codecs	SA 4	
	Terminal Capabilities	TSG T2	
	Liaison statement on IP Multimedia sessions	SA #10	
	Editorial Cleanup	SBC	
	MMS stage 1	T2	
	MM Forwarding	T2	
	New features in MMS R'4	T2	
	Support for Streaming in MMS	T2	
	Discussion document on UE functionality split over physical devices (Copy SA1)	T2	
	Work Item Description for Release 4: ODB (Operator Determined Barring) for	NEC	
10	Packet Oriented Services	INLO	
19	Corrections of the ODB categories for Packet Oriented Services	NEC	
	Introduction of features from the CPHS for 3G Rel-4	T2	
	Reply to conformance test requirements for application layer test	T2	
	Support for prepaid in MMS	T2	
	Terminal Capability Negotiation	N1	
	Emergency Call Indication in the network (Copy SA1)	N1	
	LS on DL indication of the network interface (Copy SA1)	N1	
	Response "Re-establish Capability for Emergency call" from SA1	N1	
	LS on removal of GPRS Network operation mode III	N1	
	Response to LS on missing definition of high quality signal for UMTS and on	N1	
20	comparing UMTS and GSM signal quality (copy to SA1)	IN I	
29	LS on PLMN Selection and Re-selection Issues	N1	
	Response to LS "Enhancement of CPHS Network Operator Name Feature for 3G	N1	
00	R4"		
31	LS on Problem with GPRS and Roaming	N1	
32	LS "Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	N2	
	LS requesting clarification on interworking between IM domain and CS networks	N3	
	LS for clarification of MPTY is	N4	
	LS on Maximum size of LCS clients	N4	
	Remove ODB for Packet Oriented Services from Release 99	NEC	
37	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the	NEC	
	Packet Oriented Services		
38	eMLPP for PS Domain	S2	
39	Clarification of VHE capable set of services	S2	
40	Provision of Open Interfaces within the GERAN & UMTS for LCS Support	S2	
	VHE User Profiles - Security issues	S3	
	Modification of pre-configuration information (Copy SA1)	S3	
	Proposal not to use the IMSI as the identity of an IM subscriber (Copy SA1)	S3	
	LS to TSGs T2, SA1, SA2 and SA4 regarding conformance test requirements for	T1	
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	1	

	application layer test	
	SAT/USAT Control of IP Multimedia Services	T3
	TR 31.900 - SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking Aspects	T3
	SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking Aspects	T3
	Introduction of features from the CPHS for 3G Rel-4	T3
	Introduction of Operator PLMN Name List for 3G Rel-4	T3
50	Request for clarification on disconnecting Multiparty calls when a single call is active	G4
51	Request for clarification on MPTY auxiliary state when only one remote party remains	G4
52	LS on Creation of a new specification to handle implementation issues caused by changes to the Release '97 GPRS specifications (Copy SA1)	GERAN
53	Interworking between modified Public Land Mobile Network (PLMN) supporting GPRS and Legacy GPRS mobiles	GERAN
54	LS on DL indication of the network interface (Copy SA1)	GERAN
	Proposed working method for Service Modification	N3
	LS "Control of IP multimedia services"	CN Ad hoc
	LS on Requirements for PLMN selection and reselection	R2
	Response to LS (N1-001039) on Missing definition of high quality signal for UMTS and on comparing UMTS and GSM signal quality (Copy SA1)	R2
59	Convergence of QoS approaches in 3GPP and TIPHON	TIPHON
	End to end QoS in IP networks	TIPHON
	LS on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	GSMA SERG
	Application on external devices	Chair GSM CF
Ŭ <u>_</u>	Application on oncomial devices	& EICTA CCIG
63	3GPP TSG SA Workshop on UE in idle mode	Nokia
64	LS requesting clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	N3
65	Questions concerning impact on charging of Release 4 architecture	SA5
	Release 4 specification set from Release 99	MCC
67	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	Qualcomm Europe SARL, Lucent Technologies
68	Report from SA LCS Workshop, London, 11-12 January 2001	Qualcomm Europe SARL
69	Predictive Text Input	France Telecom
70	Predictive Text Input	France Telecom
71	Handling of interactions between applications requiring the access to UE resources	France Telecom
72	Handling of interactions between applications requiring the access to UE resources	France Telecom
73	Notification of active CFU	One 2 One
74	PLMN name indication	One 2 One
75	PLMN name indication	One 2 One
76	Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
77	Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
78	Message Waiting Indication persistency	One 2 One
	Message Waiting Indication persistency	One 2 One
	Editorial changes and new definitions	One 2 One
	VHE ADHOC #4 Meeting report	Editor
	LS to S2 on VHE to R4	Adhoc group

83	VHE ADHOC #5 meeting report	Chair/Editor
	The Virtual Home Environment (Release 5) Clean copy of 096 submitted to S1	Editor
0.	plenary	Lanoi
85	Changes to TS 22.121 Release 4 - Update of 097 submitted to S1 Plenary	Editor
86	Proposed Reply LS to S2 (S2-002093) on clarification of VHE requirements (Update of 100 (LS to S2) submitted to S1 plenary)	Editor
87	Handling of Service Provisioning requirements	Chair/Editor
88	Deletion of reference to GSM 10.71	MCC Sec
89	High Level Push Service Requirements	Motorola, Comverse, Openwave, Japan Telecom, Ericsson, AT&T Wireless Systems
90	Introduction of charging for IPMultimedia and Event Based Charging	TIM S.p.A.
91	Work Status of "Support of push service"	WI rapporteur (NTT Comware)
92	Liaison Statement about Push Services Work Item	SA2
93	Proposed change to WI: A feasibility study of an architecture for Push Service	SA2
94	TS 23.874 Version 1.3.0 (Feasibility study of architecture for push	SA2
95	LS Response to LCS Privacy Exception List changes	SA2
96	Enhancement of LCS functionality in Rel-4	SA2
97	Answer to LS on request for OSA Interface Information	SA2
98	LS on IM Emergency Call without USIM	SA2
99	Withdrawing the SA Work Item on open LCS interfaces	SA2
100	LS "Control of IP multimedia services"	SA2
101	Removal of GPRS Network Operation Mode III	SA2
102	Response to LS (T2-000793) on discussion document on UE functionality split over physical devices	SA2
103	Meeting Report of SA1 CAMEL Ad Hoc 30th Jan - 1st Feb 2001	CAMEL ad hoc
104	Remedy for incorrect implementation of CR 22.078-062r5	CAMEL ad hoc
105	Alignment with stage 2 & 3, and some editorial corrections	CAMEL ad hoc
106	Alignment with stage 2 & 3, and some editorial corrections	CAMEL ad hoc
107	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
108	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
109	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
110	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc
111	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc
112	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc
113	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	CAMEL ad hoc
114	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	CAMEL ad hoc
115	Correction of interaction between CAMEL and BOIC	CAMEL ad hoc
116	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	CAMEL ad hoc
117	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	CAMEL ad hoc
118	Interaction between CAMEL control of MO-/MT-SMS and Call Barring & ODB	CAMEL ad hoc
119	Enhancements to mobility management reporting	CAMEL ad hoc
120	Changing of naming for SMS-CSI	CAMEL ad hoc
121	Corrections of Call Barring interaction for CSE created call / new party	CAMEL ad hoc
122	Enhanced CSE capability for Subscribed Dialled Services	CAMEL ad hoc
123	Clarification on Call Party Handling requirements	CAMEL ad hoc
124	Provide Location Information in case a terminating call is alerted	CAMEL ad hoc

	Transport of Charging Information from serving PLMN to the CSE	CAMEL ad hoc
126	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	CAMEL ad hoc
127	Proposed Work Item description	Ericsson L.M.
128	Service aspects; Stage 1 Push Service (3G TS 22.xxx Release 5)	Ericsson L.M.
129	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	SIEMENS
130	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '98)	SIEMENS
131	CR to 22.011 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '99)	SIEMENS
	CR to 22.011 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release 4)	SIEMENS
	Meeting Report OSA adhoc #3	S1 OSA ad-hoc
	Meeting Report OSA adhoc #4	SIEMENS
	Discussion document on OSA Terminal Capabilities	SIEMENS
	22.127 version 1.2.0 (Release 4)	S1 OSA ad-hoc
	22.127 V 4.0.0	rapporteur
	22.127 v 4.0.0 22.127 version 1.3.0 (Release 5)	rapporteur
	Proposed LS to T2 MMS: Additional feedback to Request for OSA Interface	S1 OSA ad-hoc
	Information, (T2-000556)	
	CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on CS Call Control (Release 4)	SIEMENS
	CR to 22.127 V 4.0.0 on User interaction(Release 4)	SIEMENS
	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	SIEMENS
	IMS Service Examples and Overall Requirements (Discussion document)	SIEMENS
144	Elaboration of KEY IDENTIFICATION EVENT	TSG-T3
4.45	LICAT intermediate at the second	chairman
	USAT interpreter stage 1	T3
	Operator PLMN List Overview	SBC
	LS on Introduction of Operator PLMN Name List for 3G Release 4	SBC
	User controlled PLMN list	Vodafone
149	Proposal for new Stage 1 specification : Multimedia Service Capability Requirements	Vodafone
150	Multimedia service examples	Ericsson
151	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	Ericsson
152	Service control for different components of an IP multimedia session	Ericsson
153	Service requirements for local services	Ericsson
154	Comments to the LS SP-000696	AT&T Wireless
155	Response to LS on Enhancement of LCS functionality in Rel-4	NTT DoCoMo
	Definition of Zone	NTT DoCoMo
	proposed response on Liaison Statement about Push Services Work Item	NTT DoCoMo
	Work Item Description for the Predictive Text Input feature	France
. 55		Telecom
159	Reply to TIPHON on QoS	France
		Telecom
	Reply to SA2 on eMLPP for PS Domain	Siemens
161	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	Qualcomm Europe SARL, Lucent
162	Definition of "Basic voice call"	Technologies Alcatel, Fujitsu, Nokia, Siemens
163	Reply on "Re-establish Capability for Emergency call" from SA1	Ericsson
	LCS future developments	Nokia
	Report on UE functionality split over physical devices	BT
	LS on UE functionality split over physical devices	BT

167	LS on TR 31.900 - SIM/USIM Internal and External Interworking Aspects	One2one
168	LS on USAT interpreter stage 1	Motorola
169	The Virtual Home Environment (Release 5) Addition of User profile requirement and changes for clarification	VHE Ad hoc
170	LS on PLMN Selection and Re-selection Issues	France
474	Clariffication and disconnection Multiparty, calls when a single call is notive	Telecom
	Clarification on disconnecting Multiparty calls when a single call is active	Siemens
	GPRS clarifications	Lucent
	CR on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	NTT DoCoMo
	CR on Operator Determined Barring – Zonal Barring to 3GPP TSG SA WG1	NTT DoCoMo
	Rel-5 VHE service discovery	Motorola
	Rel-5 OSA service discovery	Motorola
	LS to T3 on Introduction of CPHS features	Orange
	CR to 22.101 on Introduction of CPHS features	Orange
179	CR to 22.101 on Introduction of CPHS features	Orange
180	Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	One2one
181	Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	One2one
182	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	ad hoc
183	LS giving clarification on interworking between IM domain and CS networks	ad hoc
184	LS to TSGs T1 regarding conformance test requirements for application layer test	Nokia
185	Requirement for End-to-end encryption of IP mulitmedia Subsystem controlled VOIP	AT&T
186	Background information for a new feature on STK (A new event Key Identification)	Celltick
187	Response to LS on SAT/USAT Control of IP Multimedia Services	SBC
188	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc
189	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc
190	Corrections of congestion control procedure	CAMEL ad hoc
191	Response to LS "Control of IP multimedia services"	SBC
192	Introduction of charging for IPMultimedia and Event Based Charging	TIM S.p.A.
193	Reponse to LS on IM Emergency Call without USIM	AT&T
194	Updated meeting Report of SA1 CAMEL Ad Hoc 30th Jan – 1st Feb 2001	CAMEL ad hoc
	Barring of MT SMS Service Requirements	One 2 One
	Indication of Key Identification	Celltick
	Packet-switched Streaming Services (PSS); General Description	Vodafone
	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
	Indication of Key Identification	Celltick
	Proposed Reply LS to S2 (S2-002093) on clarification of VHE requirements (Update of 100 (LS to S2) submitted to S1 plenary)	Editor
202	MeXE service discovery	Motorola
	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
204	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
205	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
206	VHE ADHOC #4 Meeting report	Editor
	PLMN name indication	One 2 One
	PLMN name indication	One 2 One
_55	Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One
200		
	Display of service provider name in the UE	One 2 One

212	Request for Containment	S1 delegate
213	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
214	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
215	New subclause is added regarding to the CAMEL interactions with ODB for the Packet Oriented Services	NEC
216	CR to 22.101 on Clarifications on IMS emergency call support	Nokia
217	Plan for services scenarios activity within SA1	IP multimedia services ad hoc chair
218	Editorial Cleanup	SBC/Nokia
219	LS on Maximum size of LCS clients	Vodafone
220	Reponse to LS on Support for prepaid in MMS	SA1
221	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	Alcatel
222	UMTS/GSM ANSI-41 inter-standard roaming	Qualcomm
223	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	CAMEL ad hoc
224	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
225	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
226	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
227	Discussion on Wideband AMR	Siemens
228	Support of presence capabilty	Motorola, et al
229	High Level Push Service Requirements	SA1
230	Proposal not to use the IMSI as the identity of an IM subscriber (Copy SA1)	SA2
231	Periodic PLMN selection attempt	France Telecom
232	Standardisation of IMS Common Services and Advanced Service Examples	ВТ
233	Editorial changes and new definitions	One 2 One
234	Inclusion of commonly used definition contained in 23.122	One2one
235	Quality level negation	Nokia
236	Identification of a Target MS for LCS	Nokia
237	OSA support for LCS	Nokia
238	Clarification on Defined geographical areas	Nokia
	Location determination in call or PDP context activation and release	Nokia
240	Indication of Key Identification	Celltick
241	Proposed LS "Reply to LS on Support of earlier CAMEL phases"	CAMEL ad hoc
242	Support of previous phases of CAMEL	CAMEL ad hoc
243	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	Alcatel
244	Reponse to LS on Support for prepaid in MMS	SA1
	CR to 02.11 on Roaming restrictions for GPRS (Release '97)	Siemens
	IMS to PSTN/ISDN interworking for basic voice calls only	Alcatel
247	Requirement for End-to-end encryption of IP mulitmedia Subsystem controlled VOIP	AT&T
248	Response to LS "Control of IP multimedia services"	Motorola
	Reponse to LS on IM Emergency Call without USIM	AT&T
	CR to 22.101 on Clarifications on IMS emergency call support	Nokia
	Editorial CR to correct references to releases	Orange
	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	SIEMENS
	CR to 22.002 clarification on Circuit Switched Bearer Services in UMTS	SIEMENS
	Restructuring of 22.002	SIEMENS
	Statement on guidance for GPRS based PUSH services implementation	NTT DoCoMo
	Proposed response on LS about PUSH service work item	NTT DoCoMo

TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting Cape Town, SA 6th to 9th February 2001

257	Requirement for End-to-End Cooling of IP Multimedia Subsystem Controlled Voice over IP Calls	Zanussi	
258	Release 4 specification set from Release 99	MCC	
259	Statement on guidance for GPRS based PUSH services implementation	NTT DoCoMo	
260	Proposed response on LS about PUSH service work item	NTT DoCoMo	
261	Requirement for End-to-end encryption of IP mulitmedia Subsystem controlled VOIP	AT&T	
262	Release 4 specification set from Release 99	MCC	
263	List of rapporteurs	MCC	

ANNEX B – Participants list

Surname	Name	Company	Telephone	Fax	E-mail

Ms. Magdalena Akke	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER	+46 46 232 488	+46 46 193858	magdalena.akke@ecs.ericsson
Mr. Robert Alfons	NOKIA UK Ltd	(ETSI) 3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1253 865 000	+44 1252 865 065	.se
Mr. Etienne ANNIC	France Telecom	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+33 1 55 22 15	+33 1 55 22 26	etienne.annic@francetecom.
Mr. Mohammed Aslam	SAMSUNG Electronics	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+1-972-761- 7705	+1-972-761- 7799	maslam@sta.samsung.com
Mr. Massimo Barbiero	TELECOM ITALIA S.p.A.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+39 011 228 70 33	+39 011 228 76 13	massimo.bargiero@cselt.it
Ms. Yael Baruch	Celltick Technologies Inc.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+972 997 10212	+972 997 10242	yael.baruch@celltick.com
Mr. Walter Bindrim	Materna GmbH	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+49 231 5599- 584	+49 231 5599- 67 584	walter.bindrim@materna.de
Mr. Petter Thomas Bliksrud	TELENOR AS	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+47 22 78 5506	+47 22 785500	petter.bliksrud@telenor.com
Mr. José María Bravo Garrido	TELEFONICA de España S.A.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+34 630 00 96 46	+34 630 00 73 11	bravo_jm@tsm.es
Mr. Paul Carpenter	Lucent Technologies N. S. UK	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1793 883 818	+44 1793 883 815	pcarpenter@lucent.com
Mr. Mark Cataldo	MOTOROLA Ltd	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1793 566 297	+44 1793 566 225	mcatald1@email.mot.com
Mr. Peter Chaloner	BT	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 14 73 60 54 52	+44 14 73 60 68 45	peter.chaloner@bt.com
Mr. Alan Chau	NOKIA UK Ltd	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1252 86 7425	+44 1252 865 693	alan.chau@nokia.com
Mr. John Christensen	TELE DANMARK A/S	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+45 435 865 95	+45 437 104 71	jhnc@tdk.dk
Ms. Ferial Chummun	SONY INTERNATIONAL (EUROPE)	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+49 89 945 78 267	+49 89 945 78 412	ferial.Chummun@ipce.eu.son y.co.jp
Mr. Michael Clayton	Mobile Competence Center	+33 4 92 94 42 00	+33 4 93 65 47 16	mclayton@gsm. org	
Mr. Alan Cox	VODAFONE Group Plc	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1635 673 332	+44 1635 676 147	alan.cox@vf.vodafone.co.uk
Mr. Jean-Jacques Davidian	DoCoMo Europe S.A.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+33 1 5688 3030	+33 1 5688 3045	davidian@docomo.fr
Mr. Januz Dobrowolski	Lucent Technologies N. S. UK	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1793 736110	+44 1793 883815	jdobrowolski@lucent.com
Miss Vladimir Durovic	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+46 70 587 4878	+46 8 404 4613	vladimir.durovic@era.ericsso n.se
Mr. Lars Ekeroth	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+46 31 703 6566	+46 31 703 6033	lars.ekeroth@erv.ericsson.se
Mr. Olle Eriksson	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+46 8 757 0088	+46 8 508 773 00	olle.eriksson@era.ericsson.se
Mrs. Anne Even	France Telecom	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+33 1 45 29 63 20	+33 1 45 29 69 78	anne.even@francetelecom.co m
Ms. Christelle Faure	FUJITSU Europe Telecom R & D C	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 20 8 560 286	+44 20 8 733 602	
Mr. John B Fenn	SAMSUNG Electronics	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1784 428 600	+44 1784 428 629	johnbfenn@aol.com
Mr. Robert Frank	TELIA AB	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+46705909226	Robert.B.Frank @telia.se	
Mr. Geir Gylterud	TELENOR AS	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+47 73 54 39 14	+47 73 54 37 00	geir.gylterud@telenor.com
Mr. Koichi Harada	NTT DoCoMo	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+81 3 5156 1786	+81 3 5156 0250	haradakou@nttdocomo.co.jp
Mr. Markus	MAX.MOBIL.	3GPPMEMBER	+43 676	+43 1 795	markus.hochaspoeck@maxm

Hochaspoeck	TELEKOM.	(ETSI)	3350325	856548	obil.at
Mr. Kevin Holley	BT	3GPPMEMBER	+44 1473	+44 1473	kevin.holley@bt.com
wir. nevin froncy	<i>D</i> 1	(ETSI)	605604	619027	Reviningley Collegin
Mr. Takashi Kitsui	ARIB	3GPPORG_REP (ARIB)	+81 3 5563 9886	+81 3 5563 9898	kitsui@nttdocomo.co.jp
Mr. Markus Koehler	SIEMENS AG	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+49 89 722 59761	+49 89 722 31861	markus.koehler@icn.siemens. de
Mr. Tommi Kokkola	NOKIA Corporation	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+358 40 50 40 734	+358 9 511 68080	tommi.kokkola@nokia.com
Mr. Zohar	Comverse Network	3GPPMEMBER	+972-3-766	+972-3-766	zohar_levkovitz@icomverse.
Levkovitz	Systems	(ETSI)	9289	3367	com
Dr. Hashem Madadi	Hutchison 3G UK Limited	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 20 7499 1886	+44 20 7499 1887	hmadadi@attglobal.net
Mr. Jürgen Merkel	ALCATEL SEL AG	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+49 711 821 45369	+49 711 821 45556	JMERKEL@ALCATEL.DE
Mr. Kazuyuki	NEC Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	+81 471 86	+81 471 85	nagatomi@abk.ncos.nec.co.j
Nagatomi		(TTC)	3714	7862	р
Ms. Jumoke Ogunbekun	FUJITSU Europe Telecom R & D C	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 20 8606 4671	+44 20 8573 3602	j.ogunbekun@fujitsu.co.uk
Ms. Anita Olsson	TELIA AB	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+46 70 639 8591	+46 70 611 8591	anita.e.olsson@telia.se
Mr. Alexander Otto	MANNESMANN	3GPPMEMBER	+49-211-533-	+49-211-533-	alexander.otto@d2mannesma
THE THE MANAGER OF THE	Mobilfunk GmbH	(ETSI)	5126	2804	nn.de
Mr. Michele	TELECOM ITALIA	3GPPMEMBER	+39 06 3900	+39 06 3900	mpalermo@tim.it
Palermo	S.p.A.	(ETSI)	9027	9033	
Mr. Pedro Rabacal	Vodacom (Pty) Ltd	3GPPGUEST	+27 11 653	+27 11 653	
M. Cl II. D	Г'	(OTHER)	5000	5962	11
Mr. Chang-Ho Ryoo	Ericsson Korea	3GPPMEMBER (TTA)	+82 2 397 2783	+82 2 736 2765	changho.ryoo@ekk.ericsson.
Mr. Rym Sahnoun	France Telecom	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+33 1 45 29 47 03	+33 1 45 29 67 15	rym.sahnoun@francetelecom .fr
Mr. Nick Sampson	ORANGE PCS LTD	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 7973 963519	+44 7973 987883	nick.sampson@orange.co.uk
Mr. Nicolas Sauvage	TTP COMMUNICATIONS LTD	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+44 1763 266 266	+44 1763 261 216	nicolas.sauvage@ttpcom.com
Mr. Dewayne	AT&T Wireless	3GPPMEMBER	+1 425 580	+1 425 580	dewayne.sennett@attws.com
Sennett	Services, Inc.	(T1)	6847	6811	
Mr. Bokinakere Sundresh	MOTOROLA Ltd	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	b.sundresh@spire ntcom.com		
Mr. Joerg Swetina	SIEMENS AG	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+43 5 1707 21422	+43 5 1707 51924	joerg.swetina@siemens.at
Mr. Toshiyuki Tamura	NEC Corporation	3GPPMEMBER (TTC)	+81 471 85 6954	+81 471 85 6962	tamurato@elsf.ncos.nec.co.j
Mr. Kunihiko Taya	NEC Corporation	3GPPMEMBER	+81-3-3798-	+81-3-3798-	taya@bk.jp.ne.com
) (COMED + C	(TTC)	4036	4626	0 "
Mr. Seppo Tiainen	SONERA Corporation	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+358 2040 3673	+358 2040 3873	seppo.tiainen@sonera.fi
Ms. Monica Tosetto	OMNITEL	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+39 0125 626 036	monica.tosetto@ omnitel.it	
Mr. Nobuyuki Uda	NTT Communication Ware Corp.	3GPPMEMBER (TTC)	+81 43 211 2708	+81 43 211 5161	uda.nobuyuki@se.nttcom.co.j
Mr. Eric Veldkamp	KPN	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+31 703 325 048	+31 703 326 477	E.P.Veldkamp@research.kpn .com
Mr. Willy Verbestel	Motorola Inc.	3GPPMEMBER (T1)	+1 847 632 4574	+1 847 632 6999	p26458@email.mot.com
Mr. Paul Vincent	ALCATEL S.A.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+33 1 55 66 34	+33 1 55 66 44 50	paul.vincent@bsf.alcatel.fr
Mrs. Linda Werneman	ERICSSON L.M.	3GPPMEMBER (ETSI)	+46 46 23 16 46	+46 46 23 16 50	linda.werneman@ericsson.co m
Dr. David Hugh	QUALCOMM ELIPODE S A P I	3GPPMEMBER	+33 4 92 38 82	+33 492 38 82	dwilliams@qualcomm.com
Williams Mr. Randolph Wohlart	EUROPE S.A.R.L. SBC Communications	(ETSI) 3GPPMEMBER	33 +1 512 372	30 +1 512 372	rwohlert@tri.sbc.com
Wohlert Mr. Stephen Wolak	Inc. VODAFONE Group	(T1) 3GPPMEMBER	5838 +44 16 35 68 58	5891 +44 16 35 31	stephen.wolak@vf.vodafone.
	Plc	(ETSI)	55	127	co.uk

TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting Cape Town, SA 6th to 9th February 2001

Mr. Mark Younge	VoiceStream Wireless	3GPPMEMBER	+ 1 706 918	+ 1 419 781	mark.younge@voicestream.c
	Corp.	(ETSI)	1634	5444	om
Mr. Michele Zarri	One 2 One Personal	3GPPMEMBER	+44 20 8 214	+44 20 8 905	michele.zarri@one2one.co.u
	Comm. Ltd	(ETSI)	4169	1671	k
Mr. Yashiro Zenichi	Fujitsu Limited	3GPPMEMBER	+81-44-754-	+81-44-754-	yashiro.zenichi@jp.fujitsu.co
		(TTC)	4180	4148	m

ANNEX C – Document Index

S1-010001	4	S1-010058	10
S1-010002		S1-010059	
S1-010003		S1-010060	,
S1-010004		S1-010061	,
S1-010005		S1-010062	
S1-010006		S1-010063	
S1-010007		S1-010064	
S1-010008		S1-010065	
S1-010009	,	S1-010066	
S1-010010		S1-010067	
S1-010011		S1-010068	,
S1-010012		S1-010069	
S1-010013		S1-010070	
S1-010014		S1-010071	
S1-010015	,	S1-010071	
S1-010016		S1-010072	
S1-010017		S1-010074	
S1-010018		S1-010075	
S1-010019		S1-010076	
S1-010020		S1-010077	
S1-010020		S1-010077	
S1-010021		S1-010079	
S1-010022 S1-010023		S1-010079	
S1-010025 S1-010024		S1-010081	
\$1-010024 \$1-010025		S1-010081	
S1-010025		S1-010082	
S1-010020		S1-010084	
\$1-010027 \$1-010028	/	S1-010085	
S1-010028		S1-010085	
S1-010029		S1-010087	
S1-010030		S1-010087	
S1-010031	,	S1-010089	
S1-010032		S1-010090	,
S1-010034		S1-010091	
S1-010035		S1-010092	,
S1-010036		S1-010092	
S1-010037		S1-010094	
S1-010037		S1-010095	
S1-010039		S1-010096	
S1-010040		S1-010097	
S1-010041		S1-010097	,
S1-010041		S1-010099	
S1-010042		S1-010100	
S1-010043		S1-010101	
S1-010045		S1-010102	
S1-010045		S1-010102	,
S1-010040		S1-010103	, ,
S1-010047		S1-010104	
S1-010046		\$1-010105 \$1-010106	
S1-010050	,	S1-010107	
S1-010051		S1-010107	
S1-010051 S1-010052		\$1-010108 \$1-010109	
S1-010032		S1-010109	
S1-010054		\$1-010110 \$1-010111	,
S1-010034 S1-010055		\$1-010111 \$1-010112	
S1-010056		\$1-010112 \$1-010113	,
S1-010056		\$1-010115 \$1-010114	
D1-01003/	10	D1-010114	14

S1-010115	14	S1-010175	
S1-010116		S1-010176	
S1-010117	14	S1-010177	
S1-010118		S1-010178	
S1-010119	23	S1-010179	27
S1-010120		S1-010180	34, 35
S1-010121	23	S1-010181	34, 35
S1-010122	23	S1-010182	15, 16
S1-010123	23	S1-010183	15
S1-010124	23	S1-010184	16
S1-010125	23	S1-010185	19
S1-010126	13	S1-010186	9, 10
S1-010127	33	S1-010187	16
S1-010128	33	S1-010188	13, 14
S1-010129	6, 14	S1-010189	13, 14
S1-010130	6, 14	S1-010190	13, 14
S1-010131	6, 14	S1-010191	16, 17
S1-010132	14	S1-010192	17
S1-010133	21, 22	S1-010193	17, 18
S1-010134	21, 22	S1-010194	12
S1-010135	21, 22	S1-010195	25
S1-010136	21, 22	S1-010196	9, 10
S1-010137	21, 22	S1-010197	31
S1-010138	21, 22	S1-010198	14
S1-010139	21, 22	S1-010199	14
S1-010140	22	S1-010200	9, 10
S1-010141	22	S1-010201	20, 21
S1-010142	7	S1-010202	22
S1-010143	18, 19	S1-010203	26
S1-010144	9	S1-010204	26
S1-010145	10	S1-010205	26
S1-010146	25	S1-010206	20, 21
S1-010147	25, 26	S1-010207	27, 28
S1-010148		S1-010208	27, 28
S1-010149	*	S1-010209	
S1-010150		S1-010210	
S1-010151		S1-010211	
S1-010152	19	S1-010213	26
S1-010153		S1-010214	
S1-010154	15	S1-010215	
S1-010155	30	S1-010216	
S1-010156		S1-010217	
S1-010157		S1-010218	
S1-010158	23, 24	S1-010219	
S1-010159	4, 5	S1-010220	
S1-010160	5	S1-010221	
S1-010161	15, 32	S1-010222	
S1-010162	15	S1-010223	
S1-010163		S1-010224	
S1-010164	,	S1-010225	
S1-010165	,	S1-010226	
\$1-010166	,	S1-010227	
\$1-010167		S1-010228	
S1-010168		S1-010229	
\$1-010169	,	S1-010230	
\$1-010170		\$1-010231	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
\$1-010171	,	\$1-010232	
\$1-010172		\$1-010233	
\$1-010173	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$1-010234	,
S1-010174	11, 12	S1-010235	28, 29

TSG_SA_WG1#11 Plenary Meeting Cape Town, SA 6th to 9th February 2001

S1-010236	28, 29	S1-01026033
S1-010237	28, 29	S1-01026120
S1-010238	28, 29	S1-01026235
S1-010239	28, 29	S1-01026335
S1-010240	9, 10	
S1-010241	13	CN12, 6, 7, 8, 10, 15, 25, 38
S1-010242	13	CN22, 7, 12, 13, 38
S1-010243	16	CN32, 7, 15, 20, 38
S1-010244	31	RAN238
S1-010245	14	SA
S1-010246	16	13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21,
S1-010247	19	22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29,
S1-010248	17	30, 31, 32, 34, 35, 36, 38, 40,
S1-010249	18	41, 42, 44
S1-010250	18	SA22, 5, 7, 8, 15, 16, 17, 21, 22,
S1-010251	25	26, 28, 30, 32, 33, 34, 38, 40,
S1-010252	7	42, 43, 45
S1-010253	7	SA32, 5, 19, 38
S1-010254	7	T1
S1-010255	33	T22, 7, 8, 9, 16, 21, 22, 24, 27,
S1-010256		30,31, 38, 40, 42, 43
S1-010258	35	T32, 9, 10, 16, 25, 26, 27, 35, 38, 41, 43, 44
S1-010259	33	